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CHAIRMANS STATEMENT

Electronics Division

Fiscal year 2009 was tumultuous year for the Groups electronics

division With Europe and the US accounting for 96% of the Groups

sales it was inevitable that the Groups performance suffered as

sales in North America dropped 35% and sales in Europe dropped

54% from the previous year

There were numerous factors which contributed to the financial

results for the year Gross profit margin dropped from 24% in fiscal

2008 to 20% in fiscal 2009 Prior to fiscal 2009 the Groups strategy

for the electronics division was to target high-end products and

phase out lower-end products with lower margins Unfortunately

due to the economic instability the Group was forced to reverse its

strategy Weakened retail markets and shaken consumer confidence

resulted in more sales of low-priced products with traditionally

lower margins As consequence the average unit selling price

dropped by 5.4% Margin dropped as low-end products accounted

for majority of the sales mix

Discounts offered to our customers during the year also adversely

affected gross profit margin Due to the weakened retail market

sales slumped during the holiday peak season In order to support

the retailers to turn inventory the Group offered discounts and

marketing support money

The cost of substantial raw materials was also affected during

fiscal 2009 One of the Groups major components was the LCD

panel which experienced unpredictable fluctuation throughout the

second half of the fiscal year Although the cost for LCD panels

continued to fall throughout the year the Group was unable to

take advantage of the falling prices due to the fact that the Group

had to purchase these components in advance in order to produce

finished goods by their shipping deadlines This hurt the Group on

two fronts the Group had to procure supplies at high price in

the pre-season and then in the selling season was forced to issue

discounts to stay competitive with the current lowered cost of LCD

panels at that time
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CHAIRMANS STATEMENT

The Groups operating cost was also adversely affected by the

instability in the world financial markets During fiscal 2009 the

value of the RMB against the HKD appreciated by 6.8% With

extensive manufacturing operations in China the Group experienced

additional expenses due to the declined purchasing power of the

HKD in China This inflation in expenses was exacerbated by the

passing of new labour law in China As the Group reacted to

the reduction in sales and took steps to reduce its workforce this

new labour law forced the Company to make increased severance

payments to downsize workforce

The Group ended the year with HK$402M in inventory drop

of 26% from the previous year of HK$544M The reduction in

inventory is attributed to rigorous inventory clearing in Q4 of the

fiscal year

Securities Trading

The Group recorded segment result of loss of HK$12.4 million

for the year

Prospect

Management is confident the Group can weather the continued

economic recession In preparation the Group has implemented

plans to lower overhead expenses and is taking conservative view

of slow economic recovery

In April of 2009 the Group substantially reduced its workforce

and cut overtime predominantly in its China factories In doing so

Management achieved substantial savings in anticipation of further

reduced turnover in the upcoming year
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT

During fiscal 2009 many factories in Chinas Pearl Delta area closed

The Group expects future market with relatively less cut-throat

competition and consequently better outlook for improved

margin The licensed series of product under brand Hamilton Beach

is taking shape especially in the area of under-the-cabinet UTC
line The Group is also vigorously pursuing the opportunity of

licensing other well-known brands to bolster its brand mix With an

established history large capacity and technological resources the

Group expects to continue to be strong player in the consumer

electronics market after the recession

Last year the Group invested HK$42.8M on RD related activities

which was only slightly off the HK$43.6M of previous year despite

the halved sales under the financial meltdown It is the policy of

the Group to maintain significant level of investment in RD in

order to stay ahead of the competition by maintaining innovation

and technological products for our customers

The Group foresees better manufacturing environment in China

in the years ahead The RMB which appreciated as much as 6.8%

last year and impacted wages raw materials and all manufacturing

overheads in China has remained stable since the close of our fiscal

2009 The Group expects that the Chinese operating environment

will improve as the struggling economy may prompt the government

to be more sympathetic to the grievances of private employers

operating within China

The Group is hopeful that fiscal year 2010 will be much improved

over fiscal 2009 Starting with strong liquidity position in the

backdrop of leaner overhead structure flexible production ability

sustained RD investment improved distribution in North America

and an experienced workforce in China the Group is positioned

to recover and resume profitability after the recovery of the world

economy
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CHAIRMANS STATEMENT
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity ani Financial Resourcs

The financial position of the Group remained stable As at 31 March

2009 cash and deposits amounted to HK$104 million as compared

to HK$77 million last year

Gearing ratio calculated as total borrowings to shareholders funds

was 0.49 2008 0.61 and net bank borrowings to shareholders

funds was 0.33 for the year 2008 0.51 Current ratio calculated

as current assets to current liabilities changed to .43 from .47

last year

Financing and apital Structure

The Group finances its operations by combination of equity

and bank borrowings As at 31 March 2009 the Groups total

borrowings is about HK$326 million 2008 HK$473 million of

which HK$302 million are repayable within one year and HK$24

million are repayable within five years Net borrowings calculated

as bank borrowings less bank balances and cash is HK$223M

2008 HK$396M

The Groups transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars

and Hong Kong dollars The exposure to exchange risk was

insignificant

Pledge of A5sels

As at 31 March 2009 the Group pledged certain assets and securities

with carrying value of HK$46M 2008 HK$134M to secure general

credit facilities for margin accounts with brokers
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
Fif

As at 31 March 2009 the Group had no contingent liabilities 2O093.31

TA

As at 31 March 2009 the Group had total staff of 1624 of which 20093l 31 I1 624A

1479 were employed in the PRC for the Groups manufacturing

and distribution business

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance 2jS l1

retirement scheme discretionary bonus and share option scheme Ii IJh1II
and also provides in-house training programmes and external .I0j
training sponsorship
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Philip Lau Sak Hong aged 62 was appointed executive

director of the Company since 26th September 1989 He is also

the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company He has

been in the Group for 39 years and over 39 years of management

experience in the electronics industry Mr Lau did not hold any

directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years

Mr Lau is also director in number of subsidiaries of the Group

of the Company He is the brother of Mr Anthony Lau Sak Kai

Mr Andy Lau Sak Yuk Ms Carol Lau Chu Lan Mr Eric Lau Shek

Hung and Mr Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors and

senior management of the Company

Mr Anthony Lau Sak Kai aged 59 was appointed director of the

Company since 26th September 1989 He is an Executive Director

of the Company Mr Lau has been in the Group for 37 years and

is responsible for the Groups overall production management in

China and also in charge of the research development of the

Group Mr Lau did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years Mr Lau is also director of

number of subsidiaries of the Group of the Company He is the

brother of Mr Philip Lau Sak Hong Mr Andy Lau Sak Yuk Ms

Carol Lau Chu Lan Mr Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr Jacky Lau Sek

Hoi who are executive directors and senior management of the

Corn pa ny

Mr Andy Lau Sak Yuk aged 59 was appointed executive director

of the Company since 26th September 1989 He is in charge of

the research and development of the Group and has been in the

Group for 37 years Mr Lau did not hold any directorship in other

listed public companies in the last three years Mr Lau is also

director in number of subsidiaries of the Group of the Company

He is the brother of Mr Philip Lau Sak Hong Mr Anthony Lau Sak

Kai Ms Carol Lau Chu Lan Mr Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr Jacky

Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors and senior management

of the Company
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DRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS PROFILE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Hon Sheung Tin Peter aged 68 had been an independent

non-executive director of the Company since 1988 and re-designated

as non-executive director of the Company on 28th September 2004

He has been practising as solicitor in Hong Kong for over 39

years He retired as Senior Partner of Messrs Hon Co Solicitors

Notaries since 1st April 2008 and remains as consultant He is

also an independent non-executive director of Automated Systems

Holdings Limited company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited He is also director of Starlight Industrial Holdings

Limited and The Singing Machine Company Inc where both are

subsidiaries of the Company He is member of audit committee

and remuneration committee of the Company

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong aged 53 was appointed independent

non-executive director of the Company since 1st October 1998

He is member of audit committee of the Company He holds

Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Exeter and is

member of the Institute of Chartered Accounts in England and

Wales Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants He has over 22 years of experience in management

and property development He is director in CITIC Pacific Limited

Hong Kong Ferry Holdings Company Limited Lee Hing Development

Limited Miramar Hotel Investment Company Limited Shun Tak

Holdings Limited and New World Mobile Holdings Limited all of

which are listed on the Stock Exchange Mr Ho resigned as director

of Taifook Securities Group Limited company listed on the Stock

Exchange on 1st July 2009
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS PROFILE

Mr Chan Chak Chung aged 51 was appointed director of the

Company since 30th September 2004 He is an Independent Non-

executive Director member of audit committee and remuneration

committee of the Company He is qualified accountant with about

28 years in the public accountancy profession He holds Master

degree in Business Administration He is an associate member

of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of United Kingdom

He did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years

Mr Winston Caiptor Chuck aged 53 was appointed director of

the Company since 30th September 2004 He is an Independent

Non-executive Director and member of remuneration committee

of the Company He has been practising as solicitor in Hong

Kong over 27 years He holds Bachelor Degree of Arts from

University of Ontario Canada He is also an independent non-

executive director of ITC Corporation Limited company listed

on the Stock Exchange

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr Lau Yat Tung aged 30 the eldest son of Mr Lau Sak Hong

Philip joined the Group in 2003 as assistant to Chairman He

graduated with Bachelor of Art in Business Marketing from

Indiana University the Kelley School of Business Previously he held

marketing executive position in Storage Technology Corp He is

now responsible for corporate relations local sales in China and

the integration of the ERP system to facilitate the modernisation

of the Groups management

Mr Lau Yat Sun aged 29 is the second son of Mr Lau Sak Hong

Philip He graduated at Bentley College business specialty college

with Bachelor of Art in Business Marketing After graduation

he worked for an electronics firm in Massachusetts as buyer

for electronic components Later on he joined the group in

2004 as Product Development President and established koncepts

International Ltd koncepts subsidiary of the Group He is

currently responsible for the development of new digital products

for koncepts
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS PROFILE

Ms Lau Chu Lan Carol aged 60 is sister of Mr Lau Sak Hong

Philip Ms Lau rejoined the Group in October 2006 to oversee the

financial management and reporting of the Groups subsidiaries

in the United States Ms Lau served as financial controller of

the Group from 1986-1988 and was President of fully owned

subsidiary of the Group in United States from 1990-1996 She has

over 32 years of experience in financial management business

consultation financial and regulatory auditing in Australia Hong

Kong and United States She graduated from Curtin University in

Perth Australia in 1975 with Bachelors degree in Accounting

and held Master degree in computing at the Canberra University

Australia in 1980 Ms Lau is certified public accountant in the

United States

Mr Lau Shek Hung Eric aged 53 brother of Mr Lau Sak

Hong Philip is Director of major subsidiary of the Group He

is responsible for the Groups Colour TV manufacturing business

He has been in the Group for 13 years and has over 20 years of

experience in the electronics field

Mr Lau Sek Hoi Jacky aged 50 brother of Mr Lau Sak Hong

Philip is Director of major subsidiary of the Group He is holding

science degree from one Australian university and is currently

responsible for the Groups material sourcing purchasing and control

activities He has been in the Group for 24 years

Mr Wong Kai Wai Tony aged 60 joined the Group as General

Manager in 2005 He started his career in the audio and video

manufacturing business since 1967 He was formerly director

of television manufacturing company listed in Hong Kong He

supervises and coordinates different divisions of the Group

Mr Lam Wang Tat Thomas aged 52 joined the Group as the

president of the Groups Marketing Division He has 32 years

experience as IT veteran and his background was in software

consulting system integration and management He has extensive

experience in sales marketing management consulting project

management software development and in consumer electronic

business He was formerly director of various major multinational

IT companies
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS PROFILE

Mr Man Cl-il Kuen aged 45 joined the Group as Chief Financial

Officer in 2009 Mr Man graduated with bachelor degree in business

administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong and with

post graduate diploma in financial analysis from University of Hong

Kong Mr Man is CPA of various US states and in Hong Kong and

is CGA of Ontario Canada Mr Man has 24 years of extensive work

experience across Canada US Hong Kong and PRC

Mr Anton Handal aged 54 joined the Company as Counsel for

matters related to United States activities in 2005 and regularly

advises the Group on legal and business matters He joined The

Singing Machine Company Inc as its Chief Executive Officer on

June 12007 The Singing Machine Company Inc is engaged in

the development distribution marketing and sales of consumer

karaoke and musical instruments The Singing Machine distributes

its products worldwide He received his Bachelor of Arts degree

in Economics from the University of California at Los Angeles in

1980 and his Juris Doctorate from Southwestern University School

of Law in 1982 Mr Handal is member in good standing with

the State Bar of California and is also admitted to the Bars of

the United States Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals and the United

States District Courts for the Southern and Central and Northern

Districts of California the Federal Circuit Court of Appeal and the

Central District of Florida He has also served as member of the

Villa View Hospital board of directors and is former member of

the Board of Trustees of the San Diego Railroad

Mr Peter Horak aged 70 was appointed Chief Executive Officer

of Cosmo in January 2001 He is the co-founder of Cosmo Canada

and has been its CEO since 1988 Mr Horak has extensive knowledge

and experience in distribution of consumer electronics products in

Canada Prior to joining Cosmo Canada in 1982 Mr Horak worked

with several top electronic companies and served as Sanyos Vice

President of Sales and Marketing He leads the sales team to open

new markets and develop new products and works closely with the

administrative group and warehouse supporting group

Mr Jeff Horak aged 50 joined one of the Group US subsidiary

Cosmo Communications Canada Inc as Vice President of Sales

Marketing since 1981 He is responsible for sales business

development of foreign markets and develops various product lines

which Cosmo distribute
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of

corporate governance The Board of directors of the Company the

Board firmly believes that to maintain good solid and sensible

framework of corporate governance will ensure the Company to run

its business in the best interests of its shareholders as whole

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices the Code contained in Appendix

14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Listing Rules as its own

code on corporate governance practices

During the year ended 31 March 2009 the Company has complied

with the Code except the following

Pursuant to code provision A.2 the roles of chairman

and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separated

and should not be performed by the same individual The

division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief

executive officer should be clearly established and set out

in writing Mr Philip Lau Sak Hong is currently the chairman

and managing director of the Company Having considered

the current business operation and the size of the Group

the board of directors of the Company is of the view that

Mr Lau acting as both the chairman and managing director

of the Company is acceptable and in the best interest of the

Company The Board will review this situation periodically

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted

by private act the Starlight International Holdings Limited

Company Act 1989 of Bermuda the 1989 Act Pursuant

to section 3e of the 1989 Act director holding office as

executive chairman or managing director shall not be subject

to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting as

provided in the bye-laws of the Company the Bye-laws

As the Company is bound by the provisions of the 1989

Act the Bye-laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the

requirements of the code provision A.4.2 which stipulates

that every director including those appointed for specific

term should be subject to retirement by rotation at least

once every three years
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To enhance good corporate governance practices Mr Philip Lau Sak

Hong the chairman and managing director of the Company will

voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting

of the Company at least once every three years in order for the

Company to comply with the Code provided that being eligible

for re-election he may offer himself for re-election at the annual

general meeting

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with leading the Group in responsible and

effective manner Each director has to carry out his/her duties in

utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing applicable laws

and regulations and act in the best interests of the shareholders

The duties of the Board include establishing the strategic direction

of the Group setting objectives and monitoring the performance

of the Group

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically reserved to

the Board for its decision and those reserved for the management

The Board reviews this schedule on periodic basis to ensure that

it remains appropriate to the needs of the Company

The Board of the Company consists of three executive directors

three independent non-executive directors and one non-executive

director Their brief biographical details and relationship if any

are described on page of the Annual Report

The independent non-executive directors all of whom are independent

of the management of the Company are highly experienced

professionals coming from diversified background They ensure

that the Board maintains high standards of financial and other

mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate check and

balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Company

as whole

Each of the independent non-executive directors and non-executive

director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company

pursuant to which each of them is appointed for service with

the Company from October 2007 to 30 September 2009 The

appointment shall terminate on the earlier of 30 September

2009 or ii the date on which the director ceases to be director

for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company or any

other applicable laws
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTD
The full Board meets no less than four times year to review the

financial and operating performance of the Group Additional board

meetings were held when necessary Due notice and board papers

were given to all directors prior to the meeting in accordance

with the Listing Rules and the Code The Board has established

procedure to enable directors upon reasonable request to seek

independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at

the Companys expenses

There were four regular Board meetings held in the financial

year ended 31 March 2009 The attendance record of each director

is shown below All business transacted at the above meetings are

well-documented and maintained in accordance with applicable

laws and regulations

Name of director

1tt4
tit
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No of board

meeting attended

Iitffifl

Philip Lau Sak Hong

Anthony Lau Sak Kai

Andy Lau Sak Yuk

Peter Hon Sheung Tin

Norman Ho Hau Chong

Chan Chak Chung

Winston Calptor Chuck
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DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the

Listing Rules the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding

directors securities transactions

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they

have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended

31 March 2009

In addition the Board also established written guidelines on no

less exacting terms than the Model Code for senior management

of the Company in respect of their dealings in the securities of

the Company
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise

there are two Board committees namely the Audit Committee

and Remuneration Committee formed under the Board with each

performing different functions

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee which is chaired by Mr Norman Ho Hau

Chong has been established with defined terms of reference in

alignment with the recommendations set out in Guide for

Effective Audit Committees issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out in the

Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules Other members

are Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Chan Chak Chung

The Audit Committee meets no less than twice year with the senior

management and the external auditors The role and function of

the Audit Committee include to review the accounting principles

and practices adopted by the Group and other financial reporting

matters to assure the completeness accuracy and fairness of

the financial statement of the Group discuss the effectiveness of

the systems of internal control throughout the Group and most

importantly and to review all significant business affairs managed

by the executive directors in particular on connected transactions

The Committee also provides advice and recommendations to the

Board and oversees all matters relating to the external auditors

and it plays an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the

independence of external auditors

The Audit Committee met two times during the financial year

ended 31 March 2009 Work undertaken by the audit committee

included

reviewing of the financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2008 and for the six months ended 30 September

2008

reviewing of the auditors fees and its re-appointment

and

considering and approve the 2009 audit fees and audit

work

Guide for

Effective Audit
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTD
The attendance record of each member is shown below All business

transacted at the above meetings are well-documented and maintained

in accordance with applicable laws and regulations

Name of audit committee member 1MtJtS

No of audit

comm itt

meeting attended

Norman Ho Hau Chong

Peter Hon Sheung Tin

Chan Chak Chung

fJn

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company which is chaired by Mr Peter Hon Sheung Tin has

been established with defined terms of reference Other members

are Mr Chan Chak Chung and Mr Winston Calptor Chuck

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract

and retain executive needed to run the Group successfully and to

motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies whilst

taking into account performance of the individual The remuneration

should reflect performance complexity and responsibility of the

individual and the remuneration package will be structured to

include salary bonus and share options scheme to provide incentives

to directors and senior management to improve their individual

performances

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include

formulation of the remuneration policy review and recommending

to the Board the annual remuneration policy and determination

of the remuneration of the executive directors

Work undertaken by the Remuneration Committee during the year

included

reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2008/2009 and

reviewing of the remuneration of the executive directors

and the independent non-executive directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE COIVTD

The Remuneration Committee meets once during the financial year

ended 31 March 2009 with the presence of Mr Peter Hon Sheung

Tin and Mr Chan Chak Chung

OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Directors has not established nomination committee

According to the Bye-laws of the Company the Board has the

power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person

as director either to fill casual vacancy or as an addition to

the Board In assessing nomination of new directors the Board

will take into consideration of the nominees qualification ability

and potential contributions to the Company There was no change

of the composition of the Board during financial year ended 31

March 2009

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 are

analysed as follows

2009331 hJ

lj
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31 March 2009

HK$000

2009331

Audit service

Non audit service

In respect of non-audit services the fees paid to the Companys

auditors related to tax compliance and tax consulting services

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to the

Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and

other information put before the Board for approval

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the

financial statements that give true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the Group Meanwhile the Directors are responsible

for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and

applied consistently and that judgments and estimates made are

prudent and reasonable In preparing the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2009 the accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable

laws were complied with

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to

events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the

Groups ability to continue as going concern The Board has prepared

the financial statements on going concern basis

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Company

are disclosed in Independent Auditors Report

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and

effective internal control system of the Group The system includes

defined management structure with limits of authority safeguard

its assets against unauthorized use of disposition ensures the

maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of

reliable financial information for internal use or for publication

and ensures compliances with relevant laws and regulations The

system is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss and to manage the risks of

failure in the Groups operational systems and in the achievement

of the Groups objectives
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL CONTROL COIVTD

During the year the Company has conducted review the effectiveness

of system of internal control including risk management system and

also the Companys accounting and financial reporting functions The

report and findings has been submitted to the Board and follow-up

plan has been adopted based on recommendations

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our

shareholders with detailed information about the Company so

that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed

manner

The Company uses range of communication tools to ensure its

shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives

These include annual general meeting annual report various

notices announcements and circulars Procedure for voting by

poll has been included in circular of the Company accompanying

notice convening general meeting and has been read out by the

chairman at the general meeting

At the 2008 annual general meeting separate resolution was

proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue

including re-election of directors The Chairman of the Board of

Directors and members of Audit Committee and Remuneration

Committee attended the 2008 annual general meeting to answer

questions from shareholders

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of

corporate governance reflects the quality of the management

and the operations of the Groups business Good corporate

governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective

allocation of resources and to protect shareholders interests The

management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice in

corporate governance and will try our best to maintain strengthen

and improve the standard and quality of the Groups corporate

governance
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Ix

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries collectively

referred to as the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company Its subsidiaries

are principally engaged in the design manufacture and sale of

wide range of electronic products and securities trading

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 41

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2009

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment

properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year the Group acquired property plant and equipment

of HK$34576000 to expand its business Details of the movements

during the year in the property plant and equipment of the Group

are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

i2oo9331
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DIRECTORS REPORT

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year the Company repurchased total of 5290000 of

its own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the

Stock Exchange The directors considered that as the Companys

shares were trading at discount to the net asset value per share

the repurchases would increase the net asset value per share of

the Company

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital are

set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

2l

jo

DISTRIBIJTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

In addition to accumulated profits under The Companies Act 1981

of Bermuda contributed surplus is also available for distribution

However company cannot declare or pay dividend or make

distribution out of contributed surplus if

it is or would after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due or

the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than

the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and

share premium account

In the opinion of the directors the Companys reserves available for

distribution at the balance sheet date consisted of contributed surplus

of HK$75263000 and accumulated profits of HK$22314000

fsiILiii
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75263000
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DIRECTORS REPORT

iI ixr na

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were

Executive directors

Lau Sak Hong Philip

Lau Sak Kai Anthony

Lau Sak Yuk Andy

Non-executive director

Hon Sheung Tin Peter

Ij

Ij

Independent non-executive directors

Ho Hau Chong Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Caiptor

In accordance with the Companys Bye-law 82 Messrs Anthony

Lau Sak Kai Chan Chak Chung and Chuck Winston Caiptor will

retire and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract with

the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable

by the Group within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for term

of two years until 30 September 2009 and are subject to retirement

by rotation as required by the Companys Bye-laws

IjJ
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flfltL11

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year Mr Lau Sak Hong Philip substantial

shareholder of the Company has provided personal

guarantee to indemnify the Group for any impairment of

an unlisted available-for-sale investment to the extent of

HK$15 million 2008 HK$15 million

On 25 September 2008 Starlight Industrial Holdings Limited

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company effected the

acquisition of the remaining 20% equity interest in Success

Base Industries Limited Success Base non-wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company from Success Bases other

shareholders including one shareholder being entitled to

exercise or control 5% of the voting power of Success

Base for consideration of HK$1600000 Upon completion

of the acquisition Success Base became wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the

transaction has been entered into by the Company in the

ordinary course of its business and in accordance with the

terms of the agreement governing such transaction that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as whole

Save as disclosed above no contract of significance to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was party and in which director

had material interest whether directly or indirectly subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year
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lx

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2009 the interests and short positions of the directors

or chief executive of the Company in the shares underlying shares or

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

SF0 which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions and of Part XV

of the SF0 including interests or short positions which they are

taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SF0 or

pursuant to Section 352 of the SF0 to be entered in the register

referred to therein or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model Code in

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange were as follows

Long position/

short position Capacity

2009331

Ii352I

Number of

shares held

Approximate

percentage of

share holding

Executive directors

Lau Sak Hong Philip

IJ fj

Long position

Interest of controlled 3165277

corporation note

34

Interest of controlled 10100415

corporation note

tb
Held by trust note

F1 ftc

169069209 21.53%

278027930 35.41%

Name of director

Beneficial owner 95693029 12.19%

0.40%

1.29%

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

CONTD

Approximate

Long position/ Number of percentage of

Name of director short position Capacity shares held shareholding

Executive directors continued

Lau Sak Kai Anthony Long position Beneficial owner 38693836 4.93%

Interest of controlled 3165277 0.40%

corporation note

If1a

Interest of controlled 10100415 1.29%

corporation note

tb
51959528 6.62%

Lau Sak Yuk Andy Long position Beneficial owner 37507445 4.78%

Interest of controlled 3165277 0.40%

corporation note

tta

Interest of controlled 10100415 1.29%

corporation note

50773137 6.47%

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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lx

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

CONTD

Long position/

short position Capacity

Approximate

percentage of

shareholdingft

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009f1f

Name of director

Number of

shares held

Non-executive director

Hon Sheung Tin Peter Long position Beneficial owner 206769 0.03%

Independent non-executive director

Chuck Winston Calptor Long position Beneficial owner 770000 0.10%

Notes

These shares are held by K.K Nominees Limited company which lj
is wholly and beneficially owned by Lau Sak Hong Philip Lau ftk lj

Sak Kai Anthony and Lau Sak Yuk Andy hereinafter collectively Nominees Limited

with other family members referred to as the Laus family

These shares are held by Wincard Management Services Limited

company which is wholly and beneficially owned by the Laus 1Wincard Management Services

family Limited

These shares are wholly and beneficially owned by Philip Lau

Holding Corporation company beneficially owned by Philip Lau Holding Corporation
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include

Lau Sak Hong Philip and his associates
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

CONTD
Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares

in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its

subsidiaries as at 31 March 2009 none of the directors or chief

executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in

the shares underlying shares or debentures of the Company or

any of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV

of the SF0 as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions and of Part XV of the SF0 or as recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of

the SF0 or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

SHARE OPTIONS

Share optiofls of the Company

The Company has share option scheme which was approved and

adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held on 12

September 2002 the Old Scheme for period of years The

primary purpose was to provide incentives or rewards to participants

for their contribution to the Group Eligible participants of the

Old Scheme included any employees non-executive directors

suppliers of goods or services customers advisors or consultants

and shareholders of any member of the Group

The maximum number of share options which might be issued upon

exercise of all options to be granted under the Old Scheme must

not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue while overall

limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised

must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise

of the option granted to each participant except substantial

shareholder independent non-executive director or their respective

associates in any 12 month period up to the date of the grant

should not exceed of the shares in issue

The period within which the shares should be taken up under an

option was any period as determined by the Board which should

not be more than years from the date on which the option was

granted The option might be exercised by the grantee at any time

during the option period

2009331XV
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isni

SHARE OPTIONS COTVTD

Share options ie Company CONYD

The subscription price of the share options was determined by the

Board but would be no less than the highest of the closing price

of the shares on the offer date the average of the closing price

of the shares of the trading days immediately preceding the offer

date or Hi the nominal value of the shares on the offer date

The consideration for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no

circumstance be refundable

The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and thereafter

no more option could be granted pursuant to the Old Scheme

In respect of the options already granted under the Old Scheme

the provisions shall remain in force The movements of the share

options granted to certain employees of the Group pursuant to

the Old Scheme were as follows

PM P94PIt
iPMWQtM4H H1bH

4If5mt9tImf
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Number of share options

U1fl

Exercise

price

Outstanding

as at

1.4.2008

t2008

Outstanding

as at

31.3.2009

t2009t

331

10.10.2003 0.86 3000000 3000000

2.11.2004 0.814 500000 500000

5.1.2006 0.89 12000000 12000000

13.11.2006 1.45 2000000 2000000

4.1.2007 1.66 220000 220000

1.2.2007 1.72 40000 40000

7.3.2007 1.93 3000000 3000000

20760000 3000000 7760000

No share options were granted to the directors of the Company

pursuant to the Old Scheme during the year

2OO9tP

Date of grant

Lapsed

during

the year

HK$
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SHARE oPTIONS CONTD
Share options of the Company CO/VTD

Notes

The above options were granted for an exercise period of five

years from the date of grant of the options

No option was cancelled during the year

new share option scheme the New Scheme was approved

and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held

on January 2008 for period of 10 years The primary purpose

is to recognise the contribution of participants and to recruit and

retain high calibre employees and attract human resources that

are valuable to the Group Eligible participants of the New Scheme

included any full time employees including directors whether

executive or non-executive and whether independent or not

suppliers consultants agents and advisors of the Group

The maximum number of share options which may be issued upon

exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme must

not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the adoption

date of the New Scheme on 15 January 2008 while overall limit for

all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised must not

exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise

of the option granted to each participant in any 12 months period

up to the date of the grant shall not exceed of the shares in

issue unless certain conditions are fulfilled

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option is any period as determined by the Board which shall

not be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is

granted The option may be exercised by the grantee at any time

during the option period

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the

Board but will be no less than the highest of the closing price

of the shares on the offer date the average of the closing price

of shares on the trading days immediately preceding the offer

date or Hi the nominal value of the shares on the offer date

312
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SHARE OPTIONS CONTD
Share options the Company COAJTD

The consideration for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance

be refundable

The movements of the share options granted to certain employees

of the Group pursuant to the New Scheme were as follows

tW1

Number of share options

Exercise Outstanding

price as at 1.4.2008

2008

Outstanding

as at

31.3.2009

M2009
3.31

23.1.2008 1.042 50000 50000

28.1.2008 0.96 346000 346000

15.10.2008 0.40 500000 500000

496000 500000 996000

Notes

The above options were granted for an exercise period of ten

years from the date of grant of the options

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately

before the date of grant of options of 500000 shares was

HK$0224 per share The fair value of the share options granted

is set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements

No option was exercised lapsed or cancelled during the year

Share options Ihe Singing Machine Company Inc SMC 52.4% The Singing

52.4 owner .ubsidiary of the Company Machine Company Inc.l SMC

Particulars of the share option scheme of SMC the SMC Scheme

are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements ffI1ftfi32

2OO9

Date of grant

Granted

during

the year

HK$
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SHARE oPTIONS CONTD
Share optiols of The Singing Muchine Company Inc SMC

524% owned subsidiary of the Company CO1VTD

The movements of the share options granted to certain employees

of the Group pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as follows

Singing

Machine Company Inc SM

tit SM li

Outstanding

as at

1.4.2008

M2008

Number of share options

Outstanding

as at

31.3.2009

2009
331

30600

30000

70140

30000

10000

21860

20000

12000

20000

70000

30000

20000

150000

20000

13680

6500

20000

20000

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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Date of grant

Granted

during

the year

Exercise

price

uSS

Forfeited

during

the year

E5

5550

19000

September 2000 200095H 2.04 36150

September 2002 20029 1.09 30000

31 December 2002 200212.31 9.00 89140

March 2003 200337H 5.60 30000

18 April 2003 20034 18 7.20 0000

19 December 2003 20031 19 1.97 35540

February 2004 20042.6H 1.54 6500

26 February 2004 20042 26 1.36 40000

29 March 2004 2004329H 1.20 20000

26 April 2004 2004426H 1.05 12000

29 November 2004 20041 29H 0.75 60000

December 2004 200412R 0.77 20000

May 2005 200559H 0.60 182000

June 2005 200566H 0.76 30000

20 January 2006 20061 .20H 0.34 30000

31 March 2006 2006331 0.32 80000

10 April 2006 20064 1OH 0.33 336485

31 March 2007 2007331 0.93 80000

31 March 2008 20083.31 0.45 120000

October 2008 200810.3H 0.14

31 March 2009 2009331H 0.11

40000

20000

112000

30000

60000

186485

60000

120000

300000

120000

534600 1133215

300000

120000

1247815 420000
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than share options as disclosed above at no time during the

year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries party to any

arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures

of the Company or any other body corporate

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2009 the following persons other than the interest

disclosed above in respect of the directors had interest in 5% or

more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company have been

notified to the Company and recorded in the register of substantial

shareholders interests in shares and short positions required to be

kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SF0

th tbE 1J l1

Number of

ordinary shares in

Capacity which interested

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

20093.31

xv 336

Name

of total

issued shares

Lee Yu Chiang Beneficial owner 42140878 5.37%

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Beneficial owner 7901 3494 10.06%

Save as mentioned above and in the section headed Directors 20093
Interests in Securities as at 31 March 2009 the register maintained .31

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SF0 recorded no

other interests or short positions in shares of the Company

2009f
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IRJ IX ri

PURCHASE SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

During the year the Company repurchased its shares on The Stock

Exchange as follows

Number of shares

of HK$0.40 each

repurchased

.405

4lfti
Price per share

Month

Aggregate

Lowest Highest consideration

HK$ HK$ HK$000

September 2008 20089 2245000 0.310 0.330 709

October 2008 200810 3045000 0.100 0.275 495

5290000 1204

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly

the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal

value of these shares The discount on repurchase was charged

against accumulated profits An amount equivalent to the nominal

value of the shares cancelled was transferred from accumulated

profits to the capital redemption reserve

None of the Companys subsidiaries purchased sold or redeemed

any of the Companys listed securities

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Companys

Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights

under the laws in Bermuda

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Groups largest customer

and five largest customers accounted for 15.37% and 58.26%

respectively of the Groups total turnover for the year

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Groups largest supplier

and five largest suppliers accounted for 8.4% and 19.4% respectively

of the Groups total purchases for the year

None of the directors their associates or any shareholder which

to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the

Companys share capital has any interest in the Groups five largest

customers and suppliers

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based

on their merit qualifications and competence The emoluments of

the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee having

regard to the Companys operating results individual performance

and comparable market statistics No director or any of his associates

and executive is involved in dealing with his own remuneration

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive

to directors and eligible employees details of the schemes are set

out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence

from each of the independent non-executive directors as required

under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules The Company considered all

independent non-executive directors to be independent

15.37%58.26%Ij4
8.4%19.4%

ti

61

32

3.13I6
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lXn

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the directors the Company has

maintained sufficient public float not less 25% of Companys

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the

year ended 31 March 2009

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of post balance sheet event are set out in note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements

AUDITOR

resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of

the Company to re-appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

the auditor of the Company

On behalf of the Board

7flf2009t331 Dfl4jiittB25%
i4n

unn

Lau Sak Hong Philip

CHAIRMAN

fl

Hong Kong

23 July 2009 20097 23

rnzi
2OO9flI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Deloitte

Iiu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Starlight

International Holdings Limited the Company and its subsidiaries

collectively referred to as the Group set out on pages 41 to

146 which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March

2009 and the consolidated income statement the consolidated

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow

statement for the year then ended and summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial

statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance This responsibility includes designing

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated

financial statements that are free from material misstatement

whether due to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion

solely to you as body in accordance with Section 90 of The

Companies Act of Bermuda and for no other purpose We do

not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report We conducted our audit

in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as

to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors

judgment including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether

due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and

true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

1-
13 lJ rri
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March

2009 and of the Groups loss and cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Pub/ic Accountants

Hong Kong

23 July 2009

fbf f5
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2009

t2009331

2009 2008

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Turnover 1281062 2199033
Cost of sales fi2lt 10241 97 166631

Gross profit IJ 256865 532722
Other income ti1t.2\ 30357 22194
Distribution costs 186529 295479
Administrative expenses 67473 168461
Decrease increase in fair value of

investment properties 13 16736 27531

Increase in fair value of

derivative financial instruments 1667 2599
Decrease in fair value of financial

assets designated at fair value

through profit or loss 1591 2167
Decrease in fair value of

investments held for trading 12868 7976
Loss gain on deemed partial

disposal of subsidiary fIi 35 150 279

Finance costs 22528 47590
Share of profits of associates 578 373

Loss profit before taxation Ii 118408 64025
Taxation 10 1280 18531

Loss profit for the year Ij 119688 45494

Attributable to

Shareholders of the Company 110186 45914
Minority interests 9502 420

119688 45494

Dividends recognised as distribution

during the year

Interim dividend for 2009 of 2009
nil 2008 4.8 HK cents 2008w

per share 94.8ftiJ 37938
Final dividend for 2008 of nil

2008 final dividend for 2008 2007w
2007 of 3.5 HK cents per share 27677

65615

Proposed final dividend of nil

2008 nil per share 2008

HK cents HK cents

3lJ LJ
Loss earnings per share lJ 12

Basic 14.03 5.81

Diluted N/A 5.75

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At31 March2009

2009337

Notes

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Non-current assets

Investment properties 13 91916 108652

Property plant and equipment 14 272565 298575

Prepaid lease payments 63676 65062
Product development costs 16 260 607

Goodwill 17 26541 27671

Interest in associates 19 8071 8573

Available-for-sale investments 20 24048 24052

Deferred tax assets 30 5918 7542

492995 540734

Current assets

Inventories 22 402471 543606

Debtors deposits and prepayments 23 181451 269025

Prepaid lease payments 15 1386 1386

Amounts due from associates 24 2945 3989

Taxation recoverable 4919 9852

Investments held for trading 25 6955 20381

Derivative financial instruments 21 120

Financial assets designated

at fair value through profit or loss 21 798 8149

Bank balances and cash 26 103572 77068

704497 933576

Current liabilities

Creditors and accrued charges 27 185227 176212

Amount due to an associate 24 2809 2809

Derivative financial instruments 21 50 518

Taxation payable 1797 16603

Borrowings due within one year 28 302309 430160

Bank overdrafts 29 8171

492192 634473

Net current assets 212305 299103

Total assets less current liabilities 705300 839837

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 30 5821 5171

Borrowings due after one year 28 23782 34890

29603 40061

Net assets 675697 799776

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At March 2009

52009331

2009 2008

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Capital and reserves

Share capital 31 314035 316151

Reserves 465588

Equity attributable to

shareholders of the Company 665100 781739

Share option reserve of

listed subsidiary 392 253

Minority interests 10205 17784

Total equity 675697 799776

The consolidated financial statements on pages 41 to 146 were 41I 146
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2009723H
23 July 2009 and are signed on its behalf by

Lau Sak Hong Philip Lau Sak Kai Anthony

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2009

1.t2009331 Hi

Equity

Other attributable to Share option

Investment property Share Capital shareholders reserve

Share Share Merger Goodwill revaluation revaluation Translation option redemption Accumulated of the of listed

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Company subsidiary

0li 1E
Oft 10 10 00 01 VtO 01 10

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

f/t it fit iLt f/t

2OO9

Minority

interests Total

111
HK$000 HK$000

At
April

2001 $20074 10 015040 100393 37138 3688 59 2001 9726 3765 51786 281006 797117 66 5181 t12350

Decrease ir fair value of ffi
availableforsale

investments 23 23 20

tscharge difference i36ff

arising
or trarsiatior 4t

of
foreign operations

147 147 513 366

Net income and espense

recognised directly
in equity $41I 23 147 170 513 3H3

Profit for the year ff 45914 45914 420 45494

Total recognised income 1A
and eoperse for the year 23 147 45914 45744 93 45831

31 5043 100393 31138 0688 82 2007 9579 3765 51786 326920 842861 66 15260 858187

Acquisitior of additional
IR84

interest in
subsidiary

2183 2183

Capital
contribution from IO/l1ih

minority shareholders of

subsidiary

626 626

Deemed
partial disposal

of
subsidiary

11 285 285

Recognitsor of equifyseffled $9/411l
sharebased payments 112l 125 125 187 312

Issue of shares upon eeercise

of share options $8th 1264 0376 337 3303 0303

Issue of shares as
scrip

1il18lt
dividend 910 6859 8169

Repurchase of shares ffth 2066 2066 7704 7704 1704

Dividends paid
56846 56846 56846

At 31 March 2008 th00o83 318 316151 109628 371383688 82 2007 9570 3553 53852 253601 781739 253 17784 799776

Escharge difference 61lffl4
arisirg or translation 3CR
of foreign operations and 1i1
asperse recogrised directly

ir equity 5252 5252 492 5744

Loss for the
year

110186 100186 9502 119688

Total recognised income $ffA
and

esperse
for the

year
tt 5252 110186 115438 9994 125432

316151 109628 37138 3688 82 2001 4327 3553 53852 143415 666301 253 7190 674344

Acquisition/deemed /1i0
acquisition of additional fiJ03

interests in subsidiaries

656 656

Capital
contribution from

minority rhareholders of

subsidiary

3426 3426

Deemed
partial disposal

1I4I
of

subsidiary

355 355

Recognition of equifysettled 4111/1
sharebased payments lt2 139 142

Repurchase of shares IOlth 2116 0116 1204 1204 1204

At 31 March 2009 62009331 314035 109628 31138 3688 82 2007 4327 0556 55968 142211 665100 392 10205 675697

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTZH ---
For the year ertded 31 March 2009

L2009$33t HiL

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss profit before taxation

Adjustments for

Share of profits of associates

Amortisation of product development costs

Release of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Decrease increase in fair value of

investment properties

Decrease in fair value of investments

held for trading

Increase in fair value of derivative

financial instruments

Decrease in fair value of financial assets

designated at fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill

Dividend income from investments

held for trading

Brokerage expenses on redemption of shares

Share-based payments
Interest expense

Interest income

Gain on disposal of property plant

and equipment

Net allowance for obsolete and

slow-moving inventories

Allowance for doubtful debts

Loss gain on deemed partial disposal of

subsidiary

Effect of foreign exchange rate change on

inter-company balances

Ij

lj

Ij

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

118408

578
347

1386
53514

16736

12868

1667

1591

1569

359
14

142

22528
525

15268

10451

14436

150

64025

373
347

1070
55198

27531

7976

2599

2167

1434
44

312

47590
4342

10

1648
5961

279

________________________________________________________________
5744 353

Operating cash flows before movement

in working capital 6813 50123
Decrease increase in inventories 130684 94010
Decrease in debtors deposits and prepayments 94478 68718
Decrease in amounts due from associates 1049
Decrease increase in investments

held for trading 558 2744
Decrease in derivative financial instruments 1319 3039
Decrease in financial assets designated

at fair value through profit or loss 5760 10479
Increase decrease in creditors and

accrued_charges J- 9015 97617
Cash generated from operations 236050 37988
Dividend received from investments held for trading 359 1434
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 10509 10165
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid 2627 6239
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded 4257 2840

Net cash from
operating_activities 227530 25858

2009w



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2iBk1lL
For the year ended 31 March 2009

i2O0933l

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital contribution from minority

shareholders of subsidiary 3426 626

Dividend received from an associate 1080

Proceeds from disposal of property plant

and equipment 1000 685

Interest received iIj 525 4342
Purchase of property plant and equipment 34576 48593
Acquisition of additional interest of subsidiary 1600
Advance to an associate

Repayment from related parties 17196

Prepaid lease payments made 48550

Net cash used in investing activities 301 50 74294

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from debt factoring loans 16349 1853
Net repayment of proceeds from trust receipts

and import loans and loans related to

bills discounted with recourse 129452 18037
Interest on bank and other borrowings paid 22528 47590
Net repayment of proceeds from short

term loans 15468 56867

Repayment of bank loan 0388 1222
Repurchases of shares including brokerage

expenses 1218 7748
Bank loan raised 50000

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of

share options 3303
Dividends paid 56846

Net cash used in from financing activities 162705 26654

Net increase decrease in cash and

cash equivalents 34675 21782
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of the year 68897 90679

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 103572 68897

Represented by

Bank balances and cash 103572 77068

Bank overdrafts 8171

103572 68897

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009$
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ft
./J JO lX IJ

For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

2009331 Lt

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in

Bermuda with limited
liability

and its shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Stock Exchange

The addresses of the registered office and principal place

of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information section of the annual report

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars which is the functional currency of the

Company

The Company is an investment holding company Its principal

subsidiaries are engaged in the design manufacture and

sale of wide range of electronic products and securities

trading

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year the Group has applied the following

amendments and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting

Standards HKASs new HKFRSs issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants HKICPA
which are or have become effective The adoption of the

new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and

financial position for the current or prior accounting periods

have been prepared and presented Accordingly no prior

period adjustment has been required

i.it

lj

Ez

HKAS 39 HKFRS

Amendments

HKOFRIC NT 12

HKIFRIC INT 14

Reclassification of financial assets

Service concession arrangements

HKAS 19 The limit on defined

benefit asset minimum funding

requirements and their interaction

Ij39

-14
Ijl

lj
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ri-F

iiJ

For the year ended 31 March 2009

t200933t

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED iIM
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS CONTD
HKFRS Operating segments3

HKIFRIC NT Embedded derivatives5

HKAS 39 Amendments

39fy T$
HKIFRIC NT 13 Customer loyalty programmes6

HKIFRIC INT 15 Agreements for the construction of

real estate3

-f15
HKIFRIC NT 16 Hedges of net investment in

foreign operation7

-16ft
HKIFRIC INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners4

HKIFRIC INT 18 Transfer of assets from customers8

-18

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_A

R4f
JYJ -HX IJ

For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009331 Hif

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS CONTD

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS

effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 2009 July 2009 and January 2010 as

appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 2009

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30

June 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

October 2008

Effective for transfers on or after July 2009

The adoption of HKFRS Revised may affect the Groups

accounting treatment for business combination for which

the acquisition date is on or after April 2010 HKAS 27

Revised will affect the accounting treatment for changes in

the Groups ownership interest in subsidiary The directors

of the Company anticipate that the application of the other

new or revised standards amendments or interpretations will

have no material impact on the results or financial position

of the Group

T20097Th

20091.1 200971
20101Th

20097

20087

20097Th
ko

fUJ20104 1t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I\JJ7lX P1 llJ

For the year ended 31 March 2009

L2009331 Hth

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on the historical cost basis except for certain properties

and financial instruments which are measured at revalued

amounts or fair values as explained in the accounting

policies set out below

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

issued by the HKICPA In addition the consolidated financial

statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

Basis of onsolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and entities controlled

by the Company its subsidiaries Control is achieved where

the Company has the power to govern the financial and

operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during

the year are included in the consolidated income statement

from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal as appropriate

Acquisition of additional interests of subsidiaries does not

fall within the definition of business combination under

HKFRS Business combinations as the acquisition does

not result in change in control The excess of the cost of

acquisition over the carrying amount of assets and liabilities

of the subsidiary attributable to the additional interest

acquired is recognised as goodwill

thLM

1iMI

Ij ijij
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
lU-f

JJJ f1X IJ nJ.

For the year ended 31 March 2009

2OO9331 HiL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Basis of consolidation CONTD

All intra-company transactions balances income and expenses

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries

are presented separately from the Groups equity therein

Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of

those interests at the date of the original business combination

and the minoritys share of changes in equity since the date

of the combination Losses applicable to the minority in

excess of the minoritys interest in the subsidiarys equity are

allocated against the interests of the Group except to the

extent that the minority has binding obligation and is able

to make an additional investment to cover the losses

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the

purchase method The cost of the acquisition is measured

at the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange

of assets given liabilities incurred or assumed and equity

instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control

of the acquiree plus any costs directly attributable to the

business combination The acquirees identifiable assets

liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions

for recognition under HKFRS are recognised at their fair

values at the acquisition date

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset

and initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost

of the business combination over the Groups interest in

the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities recognised If after reassessment

the Groups interest in the net fair value of the acquirees

identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds

the cost of the business combination the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss

fij74

IIj
IIj_fi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.f
1/i /\J JZ IX IJ P-.L

For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

L2009331 Hi

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Business tombinations CQTVTD

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is

initially measured at the minoritys proportion of the net

fair value of the assets liabilities and contingent liabilities

recognised

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to January

2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations

of another entity for which the agreement date is before

January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition

over the Groups interest in the fair value of the identifiable

assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of

acquisition

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to April 2001

continues to be held in reserves and will be transferred to

the accumulated profits at the time when the business to

which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes

impaired

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions

of net assets and operations of another entity on or after

April 2001 the Group has discontinued amortisation

from April 2005 onwards and such goodwill is tested for

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication

that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates

may be impaired see the accounting policy below

20051

200511

20014Th

20014Th

ilI 20054.1Eih
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7F EI -f

For the year ended 31 March 2009

i2009331 1ik

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Goodwifl CQNTD

Goodwill arising on acquisition after January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business for which

the agreement date is on or after January 2005 represents

the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Groups interest

in the fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the date

of acquisition Such goodwill is carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of business

is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet

For the purposes of impairment testing goodwill arising

from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-

generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are

expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition

cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated

is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an

indication that the unit may be impaired For goodwill arising

on an acquisition in financial year the cash-generating unit

to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment

before the end of that financial year When the recoverable

amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying

amount of the unit the impairment loss is allocated to reduce

the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit

first and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on

the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in

the consolidated income statement An impairment loss for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating

unit the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is

included in the determination of the amount of profit or

loss on disposal

200511 9fiW

lj_i
Ilj
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I--i

/i IlJ p1

For the year ended 31 March 2009

i2009331

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Interest in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has

significant influence and that is neither subsidiary nor an

interest in joint venture

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are

incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using

the equity method of accounting Under the equity method

investments in associates are carried in the consolidated

balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition

changes in the Groups share of net assets of the associate

less any identified impairment loss When the Groups share

of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in

that associate the Group discontinues recognising its share

of further losses An additional share of losses is provided

for and liability is recognised only to the extent that the

Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that associate

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Groups share

of the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date

of acquisition is recognised as goodwill The goodwill is

included within the carrying amount of the investment and

is assessed for impairment as part of the investment

Where group entity transacts with an associate of the

Group profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of

the Groups interest in the relevant associate

PM1

1J
-I5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ri-F

iVJ\ /J -lix Ii _L

For the year ended 31 March 2009

20093i31 eji

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business net of discounts and sales related taxes

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are

delivered and title has been passed

Interest income from financial asset excluding financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on

time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at

the effective interest rate applicable which is the rate that

exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through

the expected life of the financial asset to that assets net

carrying amount

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss is recognised when the

Groups right to receive payment has been established

Commission income is recognised when services are

rendered

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment including land and buildings

held for use in the production or supply of goods or services

or for administrative purposes other than construction

in progress are stated at cost or revalued amounts less

subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses

RTF3
ftwc
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1/J lX IJ OJ_

For the
year

ended 3t March 2009

t20O9331 SiL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Property plant and equipment CONTD

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by

paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 Property plant and equipment

from the requirement to make regular revaluation of the

Groups land and buildings which had been carried at revalued

amounts prior to 30 September 1995 and accordingly no

further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out Prior

to 30 September 1995 the revaluation increase arising on

the revaluation of these assets was credited to the other

property revaluation reserve Any future decreases in value

of these assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent

that they exceed the balance if any on the other property

revaluation reserve relating to previous revaluation of

the same asset On the subsequent sale or retirement of

revalued asset the corresponding revaluation surplus is

transferred to accumulated profits

Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses Cost includes all development expenditure

and other direct costs attributable to such project Construction

in progress is not depreciated until completion of construction

On completion of construction the assets are transferred to

appropriate categories of property plant and equipment

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong Kong

is depreciated over forty years on straight line basis after

taking into account of the estimated residual value The cost

of leasehold properties outside Hong Kong is amortised over

period of fifty years or where shorter the remaining term

of the leases on straight line basis
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009331 H1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Property plant and equipment CONTD

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of

property plant and equipment other than construction in

progress and leasehold properties over their estimated useful

lives using the reducing balance method

The land and building elements of lease of land and

buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease

classification unless the lease payments cannot be allocated

reliably between the land and building elements in which

case the entire lease is generally treated as finance lease

and accounted for as property plant and equipment To the

extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made

reliably leasehold interests in land are accounted for as

operating leases

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected

to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or

loss arising on derecognition of the asset calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the item is included in the consolidated income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation

On initial recognition investment properties are measured

at cost including any directly attributable expenditure

Subsequent to initial recognition investment properties are

measured at their fair values using the fair value model

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of

investment property are included in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise
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For the year ended March 2009

t200933l iL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CON TD
Investment properties CONTD

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or

when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use or no future economic benefits are expected from

its disposal Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the

asset calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included

in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet when group entity becomes

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument Financial

assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair

value Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities

other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are added to or deducted from

the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as

appropriate on initial recognition Transaction costs directly

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss
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for the year
ended 31 March 2009

2009331 Hi

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CONTD

Financial assets

The Groups financial assets are classified into one of the

three categories including financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss loans and receivables and available-

for-sale financial assets All regular way purchases or sales of

financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade

date basis Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or

sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within

the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating

the amortised cost of financial asset and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period The effective

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts including all fees on points paid or

received that form an integral part of the effective interest

rate transaction costs and other premiums or discounts

through the expected life of the financial asset or where

appropriate shorter period

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss of which interest income is included

in net gains or losses

jIjIfr1
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

tL2009331

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CC/VTD

Financial assets CONTD

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two

subcategories including financial assets held for trading

and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

on initial recognition

financial asset is classified as held for trading if

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future or

it is part of an identified portfolio of financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

or

it is derivative that is not designated and effective

as hedging instrument

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4- lU-f
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

t200933t eiLAJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CONTD

Financial assets CONTD

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market At each balance sheet date subsequent to

initial recognition loans and receivables including debtors

deposits bank balances and cash and amounts due from

associates are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less any identified impairment losses see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that

are either designated or not classified as financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss loans and receivables or

held-to-maturity investments At each balance sheet date

subsequent to initial recognition available-for-sale financial

assets are measured at fair value Changes in fair value are

recognised in equity until the financial asset is disposed of or

is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative

gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from

equity and recognised in profit or loss see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have

quoted market price in an active market and whose fair

value cannot be reliably measured they are measured at cost

less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet

date subsequent to initial recognition see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

E2o09331

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CONTD

Financial assets CONTD

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit

or loss are assessed for indicators of impairment at each

balance sheet date Financial assets are impaired where there

is objective evidence that as result of one or more events

that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial

asset the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been impacted

For an available-for sale equity investment significant

or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment

below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment

For all other financial assets objective evidence of impairment

could include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments or it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial asset such as trade debtors

assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually

are subsequently assessed for impairment on collective

basis Objective evidence of impairment for portfolio of

receivables could include the Groups past experience of

collecting payments an increase in the number of delayed

payments in the portfolio past the average credit period

ranging from 30 days to 90 days and observable changes

in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

12009331 thA

SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CCNTD

FnanciaI assets CONTD

Impairment of financial assets CONTD

For financial assets carried at amortised cost an impairment

loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective

evidence that the asset is impaired and is measured as the

difference between the assets carrying amount and the

present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate

For financial assets carried at cost the amount of the

impairment loss is measured as the difference between

the assets carrying amount and the present value of the

estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market

rate of return for similar financial asset Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the

exception of trade debtors where the carrying amount is

reduced through the use of an allowance account Changes

in the carrying amount of the allowance account are

recognised in profit or loss When trade debtor is considered

uncollectible it is written off against the allowance account

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss

For financial assets measured at amortised cost if in

subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases

and the decrease can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairment loss was recognised the

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through

profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of

the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not

exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

t2009331 H1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CONTD

Financial assets CONTD

Impairment of financial assets CONTD

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments

will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods

Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is

recognised directly in equity

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by group

entity are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of financial liability and an equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual

interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities The Groups financial liabilities generally include

other financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments

that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating

the amortised cost of financial liability and of allocating

interest expense over the relevant period The effective interest

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

payments through the expected life of the financial liability

or where appropriate shorter period

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis

ILW

Al

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors amount due to an

associate bank overdrafts and borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year
ended 31 March 2009

i2009331

SIGNIFICANT AC0uNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Financial instruments CQ/VTD

Financial liabilities and equity CONTD

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received net of direct issue costs

Repurchase of the Companys own equity instruments is

recognised and deducted directly from equity No gains

or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase or

cancellation of the Companys own equity instruments

Consideration paid is recognised directly in equity

Distribution settled in shares are recorded at market price

at the date of issue and credited to the share capital and

share premium respectively

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for

hedge accounting

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are

initially recognised at fair value at the date derivative

contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

to their fair value at each balance sheet date The resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive

cash flows from the assets expire or the financial assets are

transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all

the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets

On derecognition of financial asset the difference between

the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss

that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in

profit or loss If the Group retains substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership of transferred asset the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset and recognise

collateralised borrowing for proceeds received

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation

specified in the relevant contract is discharged cancelled

or expires The difference between the carrying amount of

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

i20O9331

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CON TD
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to

the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is

recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the

share options granted vest immediately with corresponding

increase in equity share option reserve

At the time when the share options are exercised the amount

previously recognised in the share option reserve will be

transferred to share premium When the share options are

forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at

the expiry date the amount previously recognised in the share

option reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits

For share options granted to employees on or before

November 2002 or granted after November 2002 and

vested before April 2005 the financial impact of share

options granted is not recorded in the consolidated financial

statements until such time as the options are exercised

and no charge is recognised in the consolidated income

statement in respect of the value of options granted Upon

the exercise of the share options the resulting shares issued

are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal

value of the shares and the excess of the exercise price

per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded

as share premium Options which lapse or are cancelled

prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of

outstanding options
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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SIGNIFICANT Acc0uNTING POLICIES

COIVTD

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from

development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated

that the development costs incurred on clearly-defined

project will be recovered through future commercial activity

The resultant asset is amortised on straight line basis over

its useful life on the same basis as intangible assets acquired

separately and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated

intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from

the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition

criteria Where no internally generated intangible asset can

be recognised development expenditure is charged to profit

or loss in the period in which it is incurred

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value Cost is calculated using the weighted-average method

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price

less all further costs to completion and costs to be incurred

in selling and distribution
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

t2009331 Hitf

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Impairment other than goodwill

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying

amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment

loss If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to

be less than its carrying amount the carrying amount of the

asset is reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately unless the

relevant asset is carried at revalued amount under another

standard in which case the impairment loss is treated as

revaluation decrease under that standard

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of

its recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for

the asset in prior years reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately unless the relevant asset

is carried at revalued amount under another standard in

which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as

revaluation increase under that standard

Taxation

jJ

j1Ij

1IiiLT

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the

year Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the

consolidated income statement because it excludes items of

income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other

years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or

deductible The Groups liability for current tax is calculated

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

tL2009331 eli

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CON TD
Taxation CO/VTD

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the

carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in

the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using

the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilities are

generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences

and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which

deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets

and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference

arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition other

than in business combination of other assets and liabilities

in transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor

the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and

associates except where the Group is able to control the

reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at

each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it

is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected

to apply ri the period when the liability is settled or the

asset is realised Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit

or loss except when it relates to items charged or credited

directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is also

dealt with in equity
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONTD
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms

of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified

as operating leases

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the

consolidated income statement on straight line basis over

the term of the relevant lease

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit

or loss on straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter

into an operating lease are recognised as reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on straight line basis

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance

costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in

which they are incurred

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group

entity transactions in currencies other than the functional

currency of that entity foreign currencies are recorded in

the respective functional currency i.e the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates

at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the

transactions At each balance sheet date monetary items

denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the

rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Non-monetary

items that are measured in terms of historical cost in

foreign currency are not re-translated
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

llA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

COIVTD

Foreign currencies CONT

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items and on the translation of monetary items are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial

statements the assets and liabilities of the Groups foreign

operations are translated into the presentation currency of

the Group i.e Hong Kong dollars at the rate of exchange

prevailing at the balance sheet date and their income and

expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for

the year unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during

the period in which case the exchange rates prevailing at

the dates of transactions are used Exchange differences

arising if any are recognised as separate component of

equity translation reserve Such exchange differences are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of

Retirement benefits schemes

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme or

the Mandatory Provident Fund MPF Scheme are charged

as expenses when employees have rendered services entitling

them to contributions
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

1i2OO933l if

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Groups accounting policies which

are described in note the directors of the Company are

required to make estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other

factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results

may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised

if the revision affects only that period or in the period of

the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date

that have significant risk of causing material adjustment

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are discussed below

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical conditions

and saleability of inventories at each balance sheet date and

makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items

identified that are no longer suitable for use in production

The management estimates the net realisable value for

such finished goods and consumables based primarily on

the latest invoice prices and current market conditions As

at 31 March 2009 the carrying amount of inventories is

HK$402471000 2008 HK$543606000 net of allowance

for obsolete and slow-moving inventories of HK$36995000

2008 HK$26544000
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

i200933t HiL

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY CONTD
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an

estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units

to which goodwill has been allocated The value in use

calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash

flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and

suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value Where the actual cash flows are less than expected

material impairment loss may arise As at 31 March 2009

the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$26541000 2008

HK$27671000 Details of the recoverable amount calculation

are disclosed in note 18

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2009 no deferred tax asset was recognised

in the Groups consolidated balance sheet in relation to the

estimated unused tax losses of HK$228797000 2008

HK$132592000 due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly

depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable

temporary differences will be available in the future In cases

where the actual future taxable profits generated are more

or less than expected material recognition or reversal of

deferred tax asset may arise which would be recognised in

the consolidated income statement in the period in which

such recognition takes place

20093.31
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

t2009331 iF

SEGMENT IN FORMATION

Business segments

The Group is organised into two operating divisions

namely design manufacture and sale of electronic

products and securities trading These divisions are

the basis on which the Group reports its primary

segment information

An analysis of the Groups turnover which

represents sales of goods and results by

business segments is as follows

W4
fi.it

pftn

Interest income

Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Decrease in fair value of

investment properties

Loss on deemed partial disposal

of subsidiary

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss for the year

Design

manufacture

and sale of

electronic Securities

products trading Consolidated

JtS

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

SEGMENT RESULTS

Year ended 31 March 2009 2009331
TURNOVER 1281062 1281062

58850 12433 71283

525

4689

13503

16736

150 150

22528

578 578

118408

1280

119688

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

200933t itJ

SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTD
Business segments CONTD

Design

manufacture

and sale of

electronic Securities

products trading Consolidated

1ts

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Year ended 31 March 2009 2009331

OTHER INFORMATION 1th46t

Additions of property plant

and equipment 34576 34576

Amortisation of product

development costs 347 347

Increase in fair value of

derivative financial

instruments 1667 1667
Decrease in fair value of

financial assets designated

at fair value through

profit or loss 1591 1591

Decrease in fair value of

investments held for trading 12868 12868

Release of prepaid lease

payments 1386 1386

Depreciation of property

plant and equipment 53514 53514

Allowance for doubtful debts ifM 14436 14436

Allowance for obsolete

and slow-moving inventories 10451 10451

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of goodwill

unallocated 1569

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

2OO9331

SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTD
Business segments COTVTD

Design

manufacture

and sale of

electronic Securities

products trading Consolidated

HK$OOO HK$oOO HK$OOO

Year ended 31 March 2008 2008331

TURNOVER 2199033 2199033

SEGMENT RESULTS 97406 6110 91296

Interest income 4342

Unallocated income 3773

Unallocated expenses 15979

Increase in fair value of

investment properties fjl1 27531

Gain on deemed partial

disposal of subsidiary 279 279

Finance costs 47590

Share of profits of associates 373 373

Profit before taxation 64025

Taxation 18531

Profit for the year $lJ 45494

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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For the
year

ended 3t March 2009

t200933t OiL

SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTD
Business segments COIVTD

Design

manufacture

and sale of

electronic Securities

products trading Consolidated

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Year ended 31 March 2008 2008331 Hih

OTHER INFORMATION

Additions of property

plant and equipment 48593 48593

Amortisation of product

development costs 347 347

Increase in fair value of

derivative financial

instruments 2599 2599

Decrease in fair value of

financial assets designated

at fair value through

profit or loss 2167 2167

Decrease in fair value of

investments held for trading 7976 7976

Prepaid lease payments made E11i 48550 48550

Release of prepaid lease

payments 1070 1070

Depreciation of property

plant and equipment 55198 55198

Allowance for doubtful debts t1 5961 5961

Net allowance for obsolete

and slow-moving inventories 1648 1648

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

lL200933l

Design

manufacture

and sale of

electronic

products

K$OOO

Securities

trading

HK$OOO

At 31 March 2009 M2009331

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interest in associates

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

i11

Ii

945317

8071

619 185175

336620

521795

SEGMENT IN FORMATION CONTD
Business segments CONTD

ii An analysis of the Groups consolidated balance

sheet by business segments is as follows

4w
ii

Consolidated

K$OOO

10786 956103

8071

233378

1197492

184556

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09f
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For the year ended 37 March 2009

It20093M31 HiL

Design

manufacture

and sale of

electronic

products

HK$OOO

Securities

trading

HK$000

At 31 March 2008 M2008t331

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interest in associates

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

sn

fE 58

1194558

8573

5256 176600

497934

674534

starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTD
Business segments CONTD

An analysis of the Groups consolidated balance

sheet by business segments is as follows

fläL4R
flfl

Mtfl%SW5

Consolidated

HK$000

48307 1242865

8573

222872

1474310

171344

2009tt8
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

t2009331 H1

SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTD
Geographical segments

An analysis of the Groups turnover in respect

of design manufacture and sale of electronic

products by geographical markets based on

location of customers is as follows

fth38f

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

ii

North America tb1 870141 1348799

Europe 356038 782738

Hong Kong 39549 17463

Mainland China 85 422

Japan and Korea 4221

Other countries 15249 45390

1281062 2199033

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment ii L1

assets and capital additions analysed by the

geographical areas in which the assets are

located is as follows

Carrying amount

of segment assets Capital additions

ithll

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

95
North America b11 275902 424317 5835 3853

Hong Kong 257144 337005 25941 28226

Mainland China 358385 426183 2800 16514

Other countries 64672 55360

956103 1242865 34576 48593

2009
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/J JZJ lX lJ lJ.

For the year ended March 2009

ft2009337 eiL

OTHER INCOME tX
2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Other income includes

Claims received 302 148

Commission 3362 6206

Dividend income from

investments held-for-trading 359 1434

Exchange gain net 1048

Gain on disposal of property

plant and equipment 15268 10

Interest income 525 4342

Rental income note 4689 3773

Repairing income 2333 1263

Sale of scrap materials 1623 2275

Note Outgoings of HK$406000 2008 HK$143000 were 4060002 t2008 143000
incurred resulting in net rental income of HK$4283000

2008 HK$3630000 2oo8 3630000 5t fr

FINANCE COSTS 5i4Z

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Interest on borrowings wholly

repayable within five years 22528 47590

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1ii flA
For the

year
ended 31 March 2009

t2009331

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

Loss profit before taxation has been

arrived at after charging

Amortisation of product

development costs included in

administrative expenses

Auditors remuneration

current year

underprovision in prior years

Depreciation of property plant

and equipment

Exchange loss net

Impairment loss recognised

in respect of goodwill

included in administrative expenses

Impairment loss recognised

in respect of available-for-sale

investments included in

administrative expenses

Minimum lease payments under

operating leases in respect

of rented premises

Allowance for doubtful debts

Net allowance for obsolete and

slow-moving inventories note

Release of prepaid lease payments

Research and development costs

Staff costs including directors

remuneration note

-i4

A5

Included in the amount is reversal of allowance for

obsolete and slow-moving inventories of nil 2008
HK$2607000 which is resulted from subsequent

sales of certain impaired items

The staff costs for the year included retirement

benefits scheme contributions of HK$1868000
2008 HK$2227000 and share-based payments of

HK$142000 2008 HK$312000

l1 2008 2607000

1868000 2008

14200052008 312000

LOSS PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

liE
Fj

347 347

3858 3529
515

53514 55198

6620

1569

10301

14436

10451

1386

42813

Note

6077

5961

1648

1070

43614

154104 159471

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

E2009331 aiL

Executive directors

Lau Sak Hong Philip

Lau Sak Kai Anthony

Lau Sak Yuk Andy Ij

50 6062 133

50 1377 46

50 1231 46

190 6435

67 1540

60 1387

Independent non-executive

directors

Ho Hau Chong Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Calptor

50

50

50

50

50

50

409 8694 225 317 9645

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the

directors are as follows

For the year ended 31 March 2009

ju
E1tflT
2009331 ih

Salaries

and other Performance Retirement

short term related benefits

employee incentive scheme Total

Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments

1th
Jii4 tJ1

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

95

Non-executive director

Hon Sheung Tin Peter 109 24 133

2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

122009331 it

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS CONTD
For the year ended 31 March 2008 2008331 hJ

Salaries

Executive directors

Lau Sak Hong Philip

Lau Sak Kai Anthony

Lau Sak Yuk Andy

lj

Ij

Ij

F1

50 8009 268

50 1388 87

50 1257 76

208 8535

74 1599

67 1450

Independent non-executive

directors

Ho Hau Chong Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Calptor

l1
50

50

50

50

50

50

350 10674 431 349 11804

The performance related incentive payments are determined

by the performance of the individual and the Groups

performance and profitability for the two years ended 31

March 2009

2009331

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO98

and other Performance Retirement

short term related benefits

employee incentive scheme Total

Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments

1th fftt

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Non-executive director

Hon Sheung Tin Peter 50 20 70
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Fr the year ended 31 March 2009

ti2009331 ejk

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS CONTD
Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three

2008 three directors details of whose remuneration are

set out above The emoluments of the remaining two 2008

two highest paid employees are as follows

2oo8
tE2008

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

Salaries and other short term

employee benefits 3106 3072

Performance related incentive

payments 80 148

Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 24 24

3210 3244

Emoluments of these employees were within the following

bands

Number of employees

UA1
2009 2008

HK$1000001 HK$1500000 1000001Y 1500000t

HK$1500001 HK$2000000 1500001 20000005t

2009$
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For the
year

ended 3t March 2009

t20O93.31 Hii

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% 2008 17.5%

of the estimated assessable profit for the year

On 26 June 2008 the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed

the Revenue Bill 2008 which includes the reduction in

corporate profit tax rate by to 16.5% effective from the

year of assessment 2008-2009 The effect of such decrease

has been reflected in measuring the current and deferred

tax for the year ended 31 March 2009

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the respective jurisdictions The underprovision

in prior years mainly arose from settlement of corporate tax

audit with the Canada Revenue Agency related to allocation

of income by subsidiary of the Group between Canada

and Hong Kong for the two years ended 31 March 2004

and 2005 The tax audits were closed in the year ended 31

March 2008

Ij

i16.5%2008 17.5%

20086.26H ffljt2008

1%16.5%

2004.20053.31

E20083
.31

2OO9

10 TAXATION 10

The charge credit comprises fj
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Current year
46 5843

Overprovision in prior years 1830

1784 15836

Taxation in other jurisdictions

Current year
812 2058

Overunderprovision in prior years 22 9328

790 11386

Deferred taxation note 30 II130 2274 8691

1280 18531

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009



89
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

i200933t iL

10 TAXATION CONTL 10

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss profit

before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

follows

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Loss profit before taxation Fij 118408 64025

Tax credit charge at the domestic income

tax rate of 16.5% 2008 17.5% 2008 17.5%M1 19537 11204

Tax effect of share of profits of associates 95 65

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 6169 1626

Tax effect of income not taxable

for taxation purposes 2974 2881
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions 6207 1233

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 21825 5792

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

previously not recognised 75 5265

Effect of tax exemption granted to

subsidiary note I31t 145 1908

Overunderprovision in prior years tiIJ 1852 9321

Decrease in opening deferred tax liabilities

resulting from decrease in applicable rate fE 176

Others 4157 1810

Taxation for the year 1280 18531

Note The subsidiary is exempted from taxation in other 1t
jurisdiction pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations

in that jurisdiction

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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For the year ended March 2009

2009331 eifr

11 DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved not to recommend final dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2009 2008 nil

During the year ended 31 March 2008 the directors have

declared an interim dividend of 4.8HK cents per share

amounting to HK$37938000 and scrip alternative was

offered in respect of the 2007 final dividend The scrip

alternative was accepted by the shareholders as follows

11

2009331
2008

2008331H11
94.8 L1J 37938000

iJ1

HK$OOO

Dividends

Cash 18908

Scrip alternative 8769

27677

12 LOSS EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss earnings per

share is based on the following data

12 lj
2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Loss earnings attributable to

shareholders of the Company

for the purposes of basic and

diluted loss earnings per share 110186 45914

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

t20093t31 iL

12 LOSS EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTD 12

13

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

2009 2008

Weighted average number of shares

for the purposes of basic loss

earnings per share 785466362 790246143

Effect of dilutive potential shares

relating to share options N/A 8080944

Weighted average number of

shares for the purposes of

diluted earnings per share N/A 798327087

No diluted loss per share is presented for 2009 as the exercise

of the outstanding options would result in decrease in the

loss per share for the year

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Fair value of investment properties

At beginning of the year 108652 81121

Decrease increase in fair value jj 16736 27531

At end of the year 91916 108652

The carrying amount of investment

properties comprises

Long leases in Hong Kong 77750 94000

Long leases outside Hong Kong 14166 14652

91916 108652

2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

2O093i31 ik

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTD
The fair values of the Groups investment properties have

been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on the

balance sheet date by an independent qualified professional

valuer not connected with the Group The valuer has

appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the

valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations The

valuations were arrived at by reference to market evidence

of transaction prices for similar properties

All of the Groups property interests held under operating

leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are

measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties As at 31 March 2009

the carrying amount of such property interests amounted

to HK$91 91 6000 2008 HK$1 08652000

14 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Computer

properties equipment

13 tiI
1fr

2009

331
9191 6000t2008 O8652000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 20098

14

Furniture

fixtures

and

equipment

HK$000HK$000

Plant and Construction

machinery in progress Total

HK$000

Motor

vehicles

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

mt

HK$000

COST OR VALUATION K1
At April 2007 f20074Th 120544 27703 106252 16736 503309 774544

Currency realignment
48 54

Additions 1666 5466 729 40313 419 48593

Disposal 168 459 2077 2704

At 31 March 2008 2008331 120376 29372 111262 15388 543670 419 820487

Additions 145 1277 901 555 31698 34576

Disposal 11451 1045 8910 3766 12750 37922

At 31 March 2009 20O9331 109070 29604 103253 12177 562618 419 817141

Comprising

At cost 79670 29604 103253 12177 562618 419 787741

At valuation 1991 1991 29400 29400

109070 29604 103253 12177 562618 419 817141
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

20O9331

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong Kong

which included prepaid lease payments that cannot be

allocated reliably between the land and building elements is

depreciated over forty years and after taking into account of

the estimated residual value The cost of buildings situated

on leasehold land outside Hong Kong is amortised over

period of fifty years or where shorter the remaining term

of the leases on straight line basis

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

IfiJ2A

14 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14
CONTD

Furniture

fixtures

Leasehold Computer and Motor Plant and Construction

properties equipment equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total

fiUL iI
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Iic Ft

DEPRECIATION frI

At April 2007 20074Th 20388 17209 86212 13359 331534 468702

Currency realignment 38 41

Provided for the
year 2285 2580 4521 776 45036 55198

Eliminated on disposal 90 1936 2029

At 31 March 2008 2008331 22670 19792 90643 12199 376608 521912

Provided for the
year 2257 2261 4067 724 44205 53514

Eliminated on disposal lUd 71 78 941 7849 3490 11392 30850

At 31 March 2009 2009331 17749 21112 86861 9433 409421 544576

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 March 2009 h2009331 91321 8492 16392 2744 153197 419 272565

At 31 March 2008 2008331 97706 9580 20619 3189 167062 419 298575

2OO94



94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rUf

ivJ\ JJ f1X lii nJ-

For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

2009331

14 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
CONTD
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other

property plant and equipment over their estimated useful

lives using the reducing balance method at the following

rates per annum

Computer equipment 25%

Furniture fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

The carrying value of the leasehold properties shown above

comprises properties situated on land held under

The valuation of leasehold properties was carried out by

firm of independent professional valuers in 1991 on an open

market value for existing use basis The Group has adopted

the transitional relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS

16 from the requirement to make revaluation on regular

basis of the Groups leasehold properties and accordingly

no further revaluation of leasehold properties will be carried

out Had these leasehold properties with carrying amount

at 31 March 2009 of HK$26621000 2008 HK$27022000

been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses the carrying value of the

leasehold properties at 31 March 2009 would have been

stated at HK$20554000 2008 HK$20920000

14

fii

jj
2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

1991
i16f80A

2009331
266210002t2008 27022000

Ii

2092000055

10 25%

20 25%

15 30%

25%

10-

20

15

25%

25%

30%

Long leases in Hong Kong 26621 27022

Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 64700 70684

91321 97706

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

i2009331 thAJ

15 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Groups prepaid lease payments comprise

Product development costs are amortised over period of

five years on straight line basis

15

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

16

Leasehold land held under medium

term leases outside Hong Kong 65062 66448

Analysed for reporting purposes as

Current asset 1386 1386

Non-current asset 63676 65062

65062 66448

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16

HK$OOO

COST

At April 2007 31 March 2008 20074.1 20083.31

and 31 March 2009 20093.31 1732

AMORTISATION

At April 2007 20074 778

Charge for the year 347

At 31 March 2008 20O8331 1125

Charge for the year 347

At 31 March 2009 2009331 1472

CARRYING VALUE

At 31 March 2009 20093.31 260

At 31 March 2008 20O83.31 607

2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

i2O09331 it

HK$OOO

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 18

18 IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in note the Group uses business segments

as its primary segment for reporting segment information

For the purposes of impairment testing goodwill of carrying

value amounting to HK$26541000 2008 HK$26102000

has been allocated to three cash generating units CGUs
including three subsidiaries in the design manufacture

and sale of electronic products segment amounting to

HK$8111000 HK$17722000 and HK$708000 2008

HK$8111000 HK$17991000 and nil respectively For the

remaining goodwill of HK$1569000 as at 31 March 2008

which is related to subsidiary engaged in e-business but has

become inactive full impairment loss has been recognised

in the financial statements for the current year

lit18

18

nts
261 02000 llJ

j8111000 17722000

708000 it2oo8 811 1000
179910005 20083

31 1569000 ThfE

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 20O9

17 GOODWILL 17

COST

At April 2007 20074 25494

Deemed acquisition of additional

interest in subsidiary 2183

Deemed partial disposal of subsidiary

At 31 March 2008 2008331 27671

Acquisition/deemed acquisition of

additional interests in subsidiaries 944

Deemed partial disposal of subsidiary 505

IMPAIRMENT

At 31 March 2009 2009331 28110

Impairment losses recognised

during the year and balance 20093.31

at 31 March 2009 1569

CARRYING VALUE

At 31 March 2009 20093.31 26541

At 31 March 2008 2008331 27671
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

E2o09331 eiL

18 IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
CONTD
The recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs has been

determined on the basis of value in use calculation The

key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those

regarding the discount rates growth rates and expected

changes to revenue and direct costs during the year The

management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates

that reflect current market assessments of the time value

of money and the risks specific to the CGUs The growth

rates are based on industry growth forecasts Changes in

revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and

expectations of future changes in the market

During the year the Group performed impairment review

for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from

the most recent financial budget for the next year by the

management and the cashflow projections were extrapolated

at 0% 2008 0% growth rate for subsequent four years

using discount rate of 7.43% 2008 8%

19 INTEREST IN ASSoCIATES

18 5lj

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

F2
Cost of investment in associates

unlisted 9310 9310

Share of post-acquisition reserves

net of dividend received 1239 737

8071 8573

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

LI Vu0%2oo8 0%t
tIi

8%

19

2009
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19 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES CONTD 19

Details of the Groups associates are as follows

Form of Place of Attributable

business registration/ Nominal value of equity interest

Name of associate structure operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities

2009 2008

Danehill Investments Limited Cayman Islands HK$7000000 48.28% 48.28% Investment holding

Holdings Limited
liability

company

7000000

Interforce Limited Limited Hong Kong HK$500000 30% 30% Trading in electronic

Interforce liability products

company

500000

The associates are indirectly held by the Company through

its wholly-owned subsidiaries

Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill of

HK$3779000 2008 HK$3779000 arising on acquisition

of an associate in prior year 3779000

International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 20O9
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19 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES CONTD
The summarised financial information in respect of the

Groups associates is set out below

19

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

20

Total assets 24545 33993

Total liabilities 12344 21610

Net assets 12201 12383

Share of net assets 4292 4794

Turnover 211642 190117

Profit for the year $lJ 1997 1266

Share of profits of associates 578 373

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Equity securities

Unlisted shares at cost 26690 26690

Less Impairment losses recognised 2650 2650

24040 24040

Listed shares outside Hong Kong

at fair value 12

24048 24052

Analysed for reporting purposes as

Non-current asset 24048 24052

2009
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ended 31 March 2009
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20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
CON TD
As at the balance sheet date all listed shares included

in available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value

Fair values of these investments have been determined by

reference to bid prices quoted in active markets

The above unlisted investments represent investments in

unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated

in Hong Kong They are measured at cost less impairment loss

at each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable

fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the

Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot

be measured reliably

Included in unlisted equity securities was an investment of

17% 2008 17% equity interest in Net Plus Company Limited

Net Plus company engaged in investment holding

and provision of healthcare related services An impairment

loss of HK$2500000 was recognised in the consolidated

financial statements in prior years At 31 March 2009 the

directors reviewed the recoverability of its carrying amount

of HK$23000000 2008 HK$23000000 with reference to

the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected

to arise from the investment and considered that the carrying

value of the interest in Net Plus is recoverable

20

Plus Company

LimitedINet Plusj.17%2008 17%

20093
31

23000000
iTNet Plus

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

21

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

Assets Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000

ii

Financial assets designated

at fair value through profit

or loss settled on net basis

Buy-write certificates on

equity securities listed in

Hong Kong 258 1606

equity securities listed

outside Hong Kong 540 6543

798 8149

Derivative financial instruments ii

not designated as hedging

instruments settled

on net basis

Foreign exchange option 120

Options on equity securities

listed outside Hong Kong 50 518

120 50 518

798 8269 50 518

20098
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21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

CONTD
The buy-write certificates contain embedded derivatives which

are not closely related to the host contracts accordingly the

entire combined contracts have been designed at financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss

On inception of the buy-write certificates the strike price of

the underlying equity securities maturity date and observation

period would be determined At the end of each observation

period or on maturity of the buy-write certificates market price

of the underlying equity securities would be compared to the

strike price The buy-write certificates would be terminated

and settled in cash if the market price is higher than strike

price The buy-write certificates would be settled in shares

if the market price is lower than the strike price

The fair values of buy-write certificates are determined by

securities brokers using valuation models based on inputs

such as share price volatility dividend yield of the underlying

equity securities

22 INVENTORIES

21 I/Z

IL4

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009

22

Raw materials 116511 197817

Work in progress 7581 1893

Finished goods 278379 333896

402471 543606
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

E2OO9331

22 INVENTORIES CONTD
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the

consolidated income statement during the year amounted

to HK$1024.1 97000 2008 HK$1666311000

23 DEBTORS DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30

days to 90 days to its trade customers Before accepting

any new customers the management will internally assess

the credit quality of the potential customer and define

appropriate credit limits Management closely monitors the

credit quality of trade and other receivables and considers

the trade and other receivables that are neither past due

nor impaired to be of good quality

22 WI
2l 3.1024197000 2008

166631 iooo

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

90H

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

23

Trade debtors 102003 192803

Deposits with securities brokers 3034 19657

Advances to suppliers 30585 31920

Prepayments and other receivables 24489 24645

Consideration receivable for disposal

of property plant and equipment 21340

181451 269025

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for

doubtful debts at the balance sheet date is as follows

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

30 days 30H 67376 103982

31 60 days 31 60H 5002 38261

61 90 days 61 90H 9338 17269

Over 90 days 90H 20287 33291

102003 192803

2009
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23 DEBTORS DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

CONTD
Included in the Groups trade debtors are debtors with

aggregate carrying amount of HK$20998000 2008

HK$54014000 which are past due at the reporting date

for which the Group has not provided for impairment

loss The directors of the Company determined that these

receivables are due from customers of good credit quality

with no history of default The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances

The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but

not impaired is as follows

Based on the experience of the management and repayment

record of the customers trade receivables which are past

due but not impaired are generally recoverable For those

balances associated with litigations the directors of the

Company will assess the cases based on legal advices from

lawyers and provide allowance for the irrecoverable debts

23

2099800052008 54014000

flT

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

31 60 days 31 60H 711 9155

61 90 days 61 90 11568

Over 90 days 20287 33291

20998 54014
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23 DEBTORS DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 23
CONTD
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually

impaired trade debtors with an aggregated balance of

HK$23531000 2008 HK$10146000 which have either

been placed under liquidation or in financial difficulties

In addition debtor balance of HK$5282000 2008

HK$4231000 has been individually impaired since such

debt will be settled by the customer at discount as agreed

by arbitration

The management has withdrawn litigation against trade

debtor as they consider that the legal and professional

expenses involved will be high and the related debtor balance

of HK$2059000 2008 HK$2059000 was individually

impaired

Included in trade debtors are bills discounted with recourse

amounting to HK$3310000 2008 HK$80426000 and

factored debtors amounting to HK$35643000 2008

HK$17223000 For factored debtors the Group will need

to repay the financial institutions if there are credit losses on

the receivables before the end of factoring period accordingly

the Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount

of the debtors and has recognised the cash received as

secured borrowing see note 28

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

101460005t
tEh

528200052008 423100055

EiII

75

331000072008 804260002t
irll 4k 35643000 Y52008

17223000t
1-

28

At beginning of the year 6436 0475

Impairment losses recognised on debtors 14436 5961

At end of the year 30872 6436

2009
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24 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured interest-free and repayable within

one year Included in the amounts due from associates as at

31 March 2008 was trade receivable from an associate of

HK$1049000 2009 nil which was aged over 90 days

25 INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

24

1049000Y2009
90

25 t9
2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

2OO9$$

26

27

Listed securities

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 1253 4230

Equity securities listed

outside Hong Kong 5702 16151

6955 20381

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group

and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of

three months or less at an average interest rate of 0.01%

2008 0.01% per annum

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 27

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Trade creditors 120323 101584

Royalty and withholding tax payable 15488 19124

Receipt in advance 755

Other creditors and accrued expenses 49416 54749

185227 176212

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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27 CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
COIVTD

The aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet

date is as follows

27

45ftnF

2009

HK$OOO

95

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

28

30 days 30 29264 70671

31 60 days 31 60H 16914 17887

61 90 days 61 90 19641 5500

Over 90 days 90H 54504 7526

120323 101584

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days

BORROWINGS 28

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Borrowings comprise the followings

Trust receipts and import loans 89547 141883

Short term loans 166521 181989

Loans related to bills discounted

with recourse 3310 80426

Bank loan 38390 48778

Debt factoring loans 28323 1974

326091 465050

Analysed as

Secured 32879 161588

Unsecured 293212 303462

326091 465050

2009
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28 BORROWINGS CONTL
The borrowings are repayable as follows

The Groups borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which are

interest bearing at range from 0.7% to 4.4% 2008 3.0%

to 6.2% per annum Interest is repriced every month

29 BANK OVERDRAFTS

At 31 March 2008 the Groups bank overdrafts bore interest

at floating-rate The interest was charged at an average

interest rate of 6.1% 2009 nil per annum Interest was

repriced every month

28 1r
fl

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

$f
4.4J2008

29

2008331H

J20o9

2OO9

On demand or within one year 302309 430160

More than one year but not

exceeding two years 11110 11110

More than two years but not

more than five years 12672 23780

326091 465050

Less Amounts due within one year

shown under current liabilities 302309 430160

23782 34890

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION 30

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and

assets recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years

Accelerated Revaluation

tax of investment Tax

depreciation properties losses Others Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

9j Ff Ft
1t

At
April

2007 20074 8372 3203 4981 274 6320

Credit charge to income tA
for the year 2050 2734 2046 7329 8691

At 31 March 2008 2008ifl31 6322 5937 7027 7603 2371

Effect of change in tax rate 364 141 313 16 176

Charge credit to income fl
for the year 1661 2250 _1563 1476 2450

At 31 March 2009 f2009331 7619 3546 5151 6111 97

Note Others mainly represent temporary difference arising from 1t T.H Ii fi

unrealised profits on inventories

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION CONTD
For the purposes of the balance sheet presentation certain

deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The

following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect

of tax losses of HK$228797000 2008 HK$132592000

due to the unpredictability of future profit streams Included

in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$184072000

2008 HK$172393000 that will expire in the years of

2010 to 2023 2008 2009 to 2019 other tax losses may

be carried forward indefinitely

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated

financial statements in respect of the temporary differences

attributable to the undistributed retained profits earned by the

subsidiaries in Peoples Republic of China PRC amounting

to approximately HK$2828000 2008 HK$314000 starting

from January 2008 under the New Law of PRC that requires

withholding tax upon the distribution of such profits to the

shareholders as the Group is able to control the timing of

the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future

30

ftT

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

t228797000 2008

72393000 201 2023
2008

cl

zi

9JU2828000 2008

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09

Deferred tax assets 5918 7542

Deferred tax liabilities 5821 5171

97 2371
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Details of the changes in the share capital of the Company

are as follows

Number

of shares HK$OOO

In April 2007 500000 shares of HK$0.40 each

were issued at HK$0814 per share as result of the

exercise of certain share options of the Company by

their holders

In May 2007 2660000 shares of HK$0.40 each were

issued at range of HK$0814 to HK$1.72 per share

as result of the exercise of certain share options of

the Company by their holders

In October 2007 4776214 shares of HK$0.40

each were issued at HK$1 .836 per share as scrip

dividend

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

20074 FI
11

0.814

20075

0.8141.72
26600000.40

200710 ii

.836547762140.40

31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 2t

Ordinary shares of HK$0.40 each

Authorised

At April 2007 31 March 2008 20074Th
and 31 March 2009 2008331 1250000000 500000

2009331

Issued and fully paid

At April 2007 20074.1 787607614 315043

Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options 3160000 1264

Issue of shares as scrip dividends 4776214 1910

Repurchase of shares 5165000 2066

At 31 March 2008 20083.31 790378828 316151

Repurchase of shares 5290000 2116

At 31 March 2009 2009331 785088828 314035

2009$$$
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31 SHARE CAPITAL CONTD
The Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock

Exchange during the year ended 31 March 2008 as

follows

31

2008331JI
101 fl

Number

of shares

Price per share

Lowest Highest

HK$ HK$

Aggregate

consideration

HK$000

20O9

Month

October 2007 200710.01 2222500 1.42 1.54 3371

November 2007 20071 01 2942500 1.43 1.52 4333

5165000 7704

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and EfI

accordingly the issued share capital of the Company

was reduced by the nominal value of these shares

The premium on repurchase was charged against

accumulated profits An amount equivalent to the Ij -t- 2$s 101

nominal value of the shares cancelled was transferred

from accumulated profits to the capital redemption

reserve

The Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock 2009301 31

Exchange during the year ended 31 March 2009 as

foil ows

Price per share

Number Aggregate

Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration

15Ji
HK$ HK$ HK$000

September 2008 2008901 2245000 0.310 0.330 709

October 2008 20081001 3045000 0.100 0.275 495

5290000 1204

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009



113

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FU-F-t

JJ IX lJ PJ_

For the year ended 3t March 2009

it200933t eit

31 SHARE CAPITAL CONTD
CONTD

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and

accordingly the issued share capital of the Company

was reduced by the nominal value of these shares

The discount on repurchase was charged against

accumulated profits An amount equivalent to the

nominal value of the shares cancelled was transferred

from accumulated profits to the capital redemption

reserve

31

Eth

All shares issued rank pan passu with the then existing

shares in all respects

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option schemes of the Company

The Company has share option scheme which was approved

and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company

held on 12 September 2002 the Old Scheme for period

of years The primary purpose was to provide incentives

or rewards to participants for their contribution to the

Group Eligible participants of the Old Scheme included any

employees non-executive directors suppliers of goods or

services customers advisors or consultants and shareholders

of any member of the Group

The maximum number of share options which might be

issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under

the Old Scheme of the Company must not in aggregate

exceed 10% while overall limit for all outstanding options

granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of

the shares in issue from time to time

32 Ui

E510%

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 20O9
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD
Share option schemes of the Company CONTD

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon

exercise of the options granted to each participant in any

12 months period up to the date of the grant should not

exceed of the shares in issue

The period within which the shares should be taken up under

an option was any period as determined by the Board which

should not be more than years from the date on which the

option was granted The option might be exercised by the

grantee at any time during the option period Each share

option vested immediately at the date of grant

The subscription price of the share options was determined

by the Board but would be no less than the highest of

the closing price of the shares on the offer date ii the

average of the closing price of the shares of the trading

day immediately preceding the offer date or iii the nominal

value of the shares on the offer date

The offer of grant of share options might be accepted

within 21 days from the date of offer The consideration

for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no circumstance

be refundable

The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and

thereafter no more option could be granted pursuant to

the Old Scheme In respect of the options already granted

under the Old Scheme the provisions shall remain in force

The movements of the share options granted pursuant to

the Old Scheme were as follows

32 I-iV
12ThJ

H1mii5
iIiW iiiIk

H21

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD 32

Share option schemes of he Company CQNTD

Number of share options

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding

Exercise at beginning during at end

Date of grant price of the year the year of the year

5r1
K$

For the year ended 31 March 2009 20093.31 LhJ

10 October 2003 200310 1OH 0.86 3000000 3000000
November 2004 200411.2 0.814 500000 500000

January 2006 20061 0.89 12000000 12000000

13 November 2006 2006 13 1.45 2000000 2000000

January 2007 200714 1.66 220000 220000

February 2007 20072 1.72 40000 40000

March 2007 200737 1.93 3000000 3000000

20760000 3000000 7760000

Exercisable at the end of the year 17760000

Weighted average

exercise price HK$ 1.10 0.86 1.07

For the year ended 31 March 2008 20083.31 HitJ

10 October 2003 200310 1OH 0.86 3000000 3000000

November 2004 20041 0.814 2500000 2000000 500000

January 2006 20061.5 0.89 12000000 12000000

16 August 2006 20068 16 1.15 500000 500000
13 November 2006 20061 13 1.45 2000000 2000000

January 2007 20071 1.66 820000 600000 220000

February 2007 20072.1 1.72 100000 60000 40000

March 2007 20073.7 1.93 3000000 3000000

23920000 3160000 20760000

Exercisable at the end of the year 20760000

Weighted average exercise

price HK$ 1.09 1.05 1.10

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD
Share option schemes of the Company CONTD

The above share options were granted for an exercise period

of five years from the date of grant of the share options

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise

for share options exercised during the year ended 31 March

2008 was HK$2.46

No share options have been granted to the directors of the

Company pursuant to the Old Scheme

new share option scheme the New Scheme was

approved and adopted at the special general meeting of

the Company held on 15 January 2008 for period of 10

years The primary purpose is to recognise the contribution of

participants and to recruit and retain high calibre employees

and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group

Eligible participants of the New Scheme included any full

time employees including directors whether executive or

non-executive and whether independent or not suppliers

consultants agents and advisors of the Group

The maximum number of share options which may be issued

upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New

Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares

in issue at the adoption of the New Scheme on 15 January

2008 while overall limit for all outstanding options granted

and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time

32 ntIV
ti

20083.31

2008115101

tJA

iii Jfr ff

20081Th5fl
10%

E30%

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD
Share option schemes of the Company CONTD

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon

exercise of the option granted to each participant in any

12 months period up to the date of the grant shall not

exceed of the shares in issue unless certain conditions

are fulfilled

The period within which the shares must be taken up under

an option is any period as determined by the Board which

shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which

the option is granted The option may be exercised by the

grantee at any time during the option period

The subscription price of the share options is determined

by the Board but will be no less than the highest of

the closing price of the shares on the offer date ii the

average of the closing price of shares on the trading days

immediately preceding the offer date or iii the nominal

value of the shares on the offer date

The offer of grant of share options may be accepted within

28 days from the date of offer The consideration for the grant

is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be refundable

The movements of the options granted pursuant to the New

Scheme were as follows

32 1tiI

12l
741%

10

ii5IJ

H28
rit

1Iiifl1

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD 32 litll
Share option scheme5 of the Company COIVTD

Number of share options

Outstanding Granted Outstanding

Exercise at beginning during at end

Date of grant price of the year the year of the year

%7Jjj
HK$

For the year ended 31 March 2009 20093.31

23 January 2008 20O8123 1.042 150000 150000

28 January 2008 2008 28 0.96 346000 346000

15 October 2008 2O0810 15 0.40 500000 500000

496000 500000 996000

Exercisable at the end of the year 996000

Weighted average exercise

price HK$ 0.98 0.40 0.69

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD
Share option schemes of the Company COIVTD

Date of grant

32

Number of share

options granted

during the year

Exercise and outstanding

price as at 31.32008

2008
3.31

KS

For the year ended 31 March 2008 20083.31

23 January 2008 2008123H 1.042 150000

28 January 2008 20081.28H 0.96 346000

496000

Exercisable at the end of the year 496000

Weighted average exercise price HK$ 0.98

The above share options were granted for an exercise period

of ten years from the date of grant of the share options

No share options have been granted to the directors of the

Company pursuant to the New Scheme

Total consideration received during the year from employees

for taking up the options granted amounted to HK$1 2008

HK$2

The fair value of services received in return for share options

granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share

options granted The estimate of the fair value of the

services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes

pricing model

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended March 2009

L2009331

Fair value of share options

and assumptions

Fair value at measurement dates HK$

Share price HK$
Exercise price HK$

Expected volatility

Expected option life years J_

0.960

0.960

49.32%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical

volatility of the Companys share price over the previous one

year The expected life used in the model has been adjusted

based on managements best estimate for the effects of

non transferability exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate

The Group recognised total expense of HK$3000 2008

HK$125000 for the year in relation to share options granted

by the Company

--

3000 t2oo8 125000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD
Share option schemes of the Company CONTD

Grant dates

32 t1J
23.1.2008 28.1.2008 15.10.2008

2008 2O08 2O08

1.23H 128 1O15

Expected dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

0.263 0.2200.224

0.880

1.042

53.95%

4.35%

2.56%

0.400

0.400

47.68%

6.34%

1.14%

4.38%

2.56%

2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

ti2009331 Hh

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES COTVJD

Share opticrt cheme of Tle Singing Machine Company

Inc lSMC 524 208 54.07% owned ubsidiary

of the Ccmpc fly

SMCs share option scheme was approved by SMCs shareholders

at the special meeting held on September 2001 the SMC

Scheme The SMC Scheme was developed to provide

means whereby the directors and selected employees officers

consultants and advisors of SMC may be granted incentive

or non-qualified stock options to purchase common stock of

SMC The SMC Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1950000

shares of SMCs common stock and maximum of 450000

shares to any one individual in any one fiscal year

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued

upon exercise of the options granted to each participant in

any 12 months period up to the date of the grant will be

300000 shares

The period within which the shares must be taken up

under an option is any period as determined by the Board

of SMC which will not be more than 10 years or years

in the case of holder with 10% or more of the common

stock from the date on which the option is granted The

option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during

the option period Each option vested in one year from the

date of grant

The subscription price of the share options is determined by

the Stock Option Committee which consists of two or more

directors chosen by the Board of SMC The subscription price

of the share options will be no less than the closing price of

SMCs shares on the offer date or if granted to holder of

10% or more of the common stock the subscription price

will be no less than 110% of the closing price of SMCs

shares on the offer date

32

1r 52.4% 208 5407%

2The iging Machi ne

Company Inc SME

SM1liE2001 6H

.E SM IS MC

OSMCM

SMC1i

1950000SMCI iThA450o00

12L1
30000O

SMCI
Itft1 ioI
10%JLJ4A J5

SMC
t10%A1fliiSMC
110%

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

t2009331 HiL

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD 32 1V
Share tn shnmc of The Singing Machine Company 52.4% 2008 54.07%

Inc SMC 52.4% 2008 54.07% owned subsidiary f1The Singing Machine

of the Company CE/VTD Company Inc

The movements of the share options granted pursuant to

the SMC Scheme were as follows

Number of share options

Outstanding Granted Forfeited Outstanding

Exercise at beginning during during at end

Date of grant price of the year the year the year of the year

uss

For the year ended 2009
31 March2009 3.31HitJ

September 2000 20009.5H 2.04 36150 30600 5550
11 September 2002 20029 11 11.09 30000 30000
31 December 2002 20021231 9.00 89140 70140 19000

March 2003 20033.7H 5.60 30000 30000
18

April
2003 20034 18H 7.20 10000 10000

19 December 2003 20031 9H 1.97 35540 21860 13680

February 2004 20042.6H 1.54 6500 6500

26 February 2004 20042.26H 1.36 40000 20000 20000

29 March 2004 20043.29H 1.20 20000 20000

26 April 2004 2004426H 1.05 12000 12000
29 November 2004 200411.29H 0.75 60000 20000 40000

December 2004 200412.1 0.77 20000 20000

May 2005 20055.9H 0.60 182000 70000 112000

June 2005 20056.6H 0.76 30000 30000

20 January 2006 2006120H 0.34 30000 30000
31 March 2006 2006331 0.32 80000 20000 60000

10 April 2006 20064Th0H 0.33 336485 150000 186485

31 March 2007 20073.31 0.93 80000 20000 60000

31 March 2008 20083fl31 0.45 120000 120000

October 2008 2008103H 0.14 300000 300000

31 March 2009 2009331 0.11 120000 120000

1247815 420000 534600 1133215

Exercisable at the

end at the year 713215

Weighted average

exercise price US$ 1.67 0.13 2.79 0.58

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009f
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009A331 Hik

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES COIVTD

Sh.u hen of Singing M-chine Thrnpany

MY 2F8 54.07 owned vbsdoiry

of CONTD

32 1O
f52 08 540/

iginq fjiichinc

Company ln

For the
year

ended

31 March 2008

2008
331 HiJ

September 2000

11 September 2002

31 December 2002

March 2003

18 April 2003

19 December 2003

February 2004

26 February 2004

29 March 2004

26 April 2004

29 November 2004

December 2004

May 2005

June 2005

20 January 2006

February 2006

31 March 2006

10 April 2006

31 March 2007

31 March 2008

200095H 2.04

20029Th1H 11.09

20021231H 9.00

2003ifl7H 5.60

20034Th8H 7.20

200312Th9H 1.97

200426H 1.54

2004226H 1.36

2004329H 120

2004426H 1.05

20041129H 0.75

200412ThH 0.77

200559H 0.60

200566H 0.76

2006120H 0.34

20062 0.32

2006331H 0.32

20064Th0H 0.33

20073fl31 0.93

2008ifl31 0.45

43650

30000

90140

30000

10000

39600

6500

40000

20000

12000

60000

40000

207000

30000

30000

30000

80000

484000

100000

120000

1382890 120000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

Number of share options

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding

Exercise at beginning during during during at end

Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year of the year

iH i5c
US$

7500 36150

30000

1000 89140

30000

10000

4060 35540

6500

40000

20000

12000

60000

20000 20000

25000 182000

30000

30000

30000

80000

117515 30000 336485

20000 80000

120000

147515 107560 1247815

Exercisable at the end

at the
year

1127815

Weighted average

exercise price USS 1.57 0.45 0.33 0.85 1.67

2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

2009331 it

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTD 32

Share oOtEcr scheme of the Singing Machine Company -t 01 52.4% 2008 5407%

Inc SMC 52.4% 2008 54 07% owned subsidiary ft 4iThe Singing Mahne

of the .iminv CON Cornparty Inc SMC Il

The above options were granted for an exercise period of

ten years from the date on which the options are vested

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise 2O08331 i.E

for share options exercised during the year ended 31 March

2008 was US$0.24

No share options have been granted to the directors of the

Company pursuant to the SMC Scheme

The fair value of services received in return for share options

granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share

options granted The estimate of the fair value of the

services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes

pricing model

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Grant date 31.3.2008 3.10.2008 31.3.2009

2008w 2008 2009

3.31H 103H 331H

Fair value at measurement date US$ Ii
0.12 0.04 0.03

Share price US$ 0.45 0.14 0.11

Exercise price US$ 0.45 0.14 0.11

Expected volatility 67.41% 70.22% 80.07%

Expected option life year

Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate 3.3% 1.4% 0.6%

arIight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

t2009331 Oil

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONJD
Share opt on scheme of Toe Singing Machine Company

nc MC 524% 2018 5407% owned ubsidiary

of th Cc mpany C9TD

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical

volatility of the Companys share price over the previous one

year The expected life used in the model has been adjusted

based on managements best estimate for the effects of

non transferability exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate

The Group recognised total expense of HK$139000 2008

HK$187000 for the year in relation to share options

granted by SMC

33 CAPITAL RISK MAI\JAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in

the Group will be able to continue as going concern

while maximising the return to shareholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance The Groups

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which

includes the borrowings disclosed in note 28 net of cash

and cash equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company comprising issued share capital reserves

and accumulated profits

The directors of the Company review the capital structure

regularly As part of this review the directors consider the

cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of

capital The Group will balance its overall capital structure

through the payment of dividends new share issues and

share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt

32 liT
f52.4% 085 54.07%

iThe Sitging Machine

Company Inc SMC

1390002 t2oo8 187000

I1

ij

l1f5

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009331 eLt

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments

Investments held for trading

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss

Loans and receivables including

cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Other financial liabilities

at amortised cost

24048

6955

Firiaricia rik management objectives and policies

The Groups major financial instruments include debtors

and deposits amounts due from/to associates available-

for-sale investments investments held for trading derivative

financial instruments financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss bank balances and cash

creditors bank overdrafts and borrowings Details of these

financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes The

risks associated with these financial instruments and the

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below

The management manages and monitors these exposures to

ensure appropriate measures are implemented on timely

and effective manner The Groups overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and liabilities which expose

the Group to foreign currency risk

A3

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34

ttegcnPS lnancal instruniEnts it

24052

20381

120

798 8149

247607 316001

50 518

457477 624931
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

2OO9331 i1

34 FINANIAL INSTRLMENTS CONTD
Fu.i FY mraqcrn nl ifl ohies

COIl

Currency risk CONTD

The carrying amounts of the group entities foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

mainly represented by intra-group current accounts trade

receivables bank balances trade payables and borrowings

at the reporting date are as follows

The Group currently does not have foreign currency

hedging policy However the management monitors foreign

exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise

34 iL
is

Jf

I1

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

2009 2008

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

95
Canadian dollars 5939 549 47643 434

Euro 94 94 19370

Hong Kong dollars 221791 428149 209676 382722

Japanese dollars 1523 1247 4172 2876

Macao pataca r9 17 53

Renminbi 169 153 3712

Singapore dollars jfl 206 2670 935

United States dollars 285276 89756 145195 102881

Swiss Franc It 122

2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the
year

enried3l March 2009

1L2009331 AiL

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTD
sk management objectives and pohces

COOT

Currency risk CONTD

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency

risk from Canadian dollars Hong Kong dollars and United

States dollars Under the pegged exchange rate system

the financial impact on exchange difference between Hong

Kong dollars and United States dollars will be immaterial and

therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared

The following table details the group entities sensitivity

to 5% increase and decrease in Canadian dollars and

Hong Kong dollars against each group entitys functional

currency including Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi 5%

is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency

risk internally to key management personnel and represents

managements assessment of the reasonably possible change

in foreign exchange rates The sensitivity analysis includes

only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary

items and adjusts their translation at the year end for

5% change in foreign currency rates positive number

below indicates decrease in loss or an increase in profit

where Canadian dollars and Hong Kong dollars strengthen

5% against each group entitys functional currency For

5% weakening of Canadian dollars and Hong Kong dollars

against each group entitys functional currency there would

be an equal and opposite impact on the loss or profit

34

jE

J5ft

1hn2
5%15

ftfjIt1fuJji1I1

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9$

Canadian dollars 270 2360

Hong Kong dollars 10318 8652
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009331 0ik

34 FINANAL INSTRUMENTS COND
tr mar9etfl ni ObjeCives nd pohcies

CONT.D

Currency risk CONTD

Sensitivity analysis CONTD

In the managements opinion the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as

the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during

the year

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash flow interest rate risk on floating-rate

borrowings and bank overdrafts The Group currently does

not have any policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk

However the management monitors interest rate exposure

and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should

the need arise

The interest expenses on the Groups floating-rate borrowings

are mainly linked with Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on

the exposure to interest rates for floating-rate borrowings

and bank overdrafts at the balance sheet date notes 28 and

29 The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability

outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for

the whole year 50 basis point increase or decrease is used

when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management

personnel and represents the managements assessment of

the reasonably possible change in interest rates

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

34 I4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 3t March 2009

L2009331 it

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTD
u14fl riiQenent ubjectve

Cash flow interest rate risk CONTD

Sensitivity analysis CONTD

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and

all other variables were held constant the Groups loss for

the year ended 31 March 2009 would increase/decrease

by HK$1390000 2008 profit would decrease/increase by

HK$2018000 This is mainly attributable to the Groups

exposure to interest rates on its floating-rate borrowings

and bank overdrafts

In the managements opinion the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the

year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during

the year

Price risk

The Groups derivative financial instruments financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

held-for-trading investments and certain available-for-sale

investments are measured at fair value at each balance

sheet date Therefore the Group is exposed to price risk

The management manages this exposure by maintaining

portfolio of investments with different risk profiles The price

risk exposure of listed shares included in available-for-sale

investments to price risk is insignificant accordingly no

sensitivity analysis is presented

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on

the exposure to price risk at the reporting date

34

.0 i13 3I

miin

lJ20093
31 Hf/M01390ooo
t2oo8

ft

1Ju

jo th

AJc
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For the
year

ended March 2009

2009A331 OihAi

34 FINANCIAL INSTRLMENTS CONTD
rO rrlanacjern nt objectiu@s flC polues

ON

Price risk CONTD

Sensitivity analysis CONTD

If the prices of the respective financial instruments had

been 5% higher/lower loss for the year ended 31 March

2009 would decrease/increase by HK$385000 2008 profit

would increase/decrease by HK$1401000 as result of

the changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments

financial assets designated at fair value through profit or

loss and held-for-trading investments

In the managements opinion the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the year end

exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year

Credit risk

The Groups maximum exposure to credit risk in the event

of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations

as at 31 March 2009 in relation to each class of recognised

financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as

stated in the consolidated balance sheet

Starlight International Holdings LimitJ
Annual Report 2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

20O9331

34 HNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTD
FIndrlci sF managemen objectives and policies

CON

Credit risk CONTD

In order to minimise the credit risk the management has

delegated team responsible for determination of credit

limits credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to

ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts In addition the Group reviews the recoverable amount

of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date

to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts In this regard the directors of the

Company consider that the Groups credit risk is significantly

reduced

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies

The Groups concentration of credit risk by geographical

locations is mainly in North America The trade debtors

located in North America accounted for 47% 2008 70%
of the Groups total trade debtors as at 31 March 2009 The

Group also has concentration of credit risk by customers

as 32.98% 2008 7.91% and 44.52% 2008 44.57% of

the total trade debtors was due from the Groups largest

customer and the five largest customers respectively In

the opinion of the directors all five largest customers are

international customers with good creditability

34

tf

jffi
LL

ift

2009

47%2008
70%

32.98% 2008 7.91%44.52% 2008

44.57% Ii

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

i20093.31 Lth

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTD
Financial risk managem3nt objectives and policies

CONJ

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk the Group monitors

and maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate

committed line of funding from major financial institutions

to meet its liquidity requirement in the short and long

term The Group finances its working capital requirements

through combination of funds generated from operations

and borrowings The management monitors the utilisation of

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants

The following table details the Groups remaining contractual

maturity for its financial liabilities For non-derivative

financial liabilities the table has been drawn up based on

the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on

the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows

For derivative instruments settle on net basis undiscounted

net cash outflows are presented If they require gross

settlement the undiscounted gross outflows on these

derivatives are shown in the table

34

Lff

1Ij
Itffl51

1li

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

2009331 iL

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTD 34 II
FinanciiI risk management objectives and policies

CON TO

Liquidity risk CONTD

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Less Total

Effective Repayable than 1-3 months Over undiscounted Carrying

interest rate on demand month months to
year year

cash flows amounts

1i 1-3 3l1 fi41 tI8 U1
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

zf 9t Tc

2009 20O9

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Trade and other creditors 32575 23477 33749 38776 128577 128577

Amount due to an associate 2809 2809 2809

Borrowings 2.0 87771 148589 65360 29225 330945 326091

35384 111248 182338 104136 29225 462331 457477

Derivatives

net settlement

Options 50 50 50

2008 2008w

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Trade and other creditors 41506 65156 23325 18914 148901 148901

Amount due to an associate 2809 2809 2809

Borrowings 3.5 20114 146096 297572 35692 39050 538524 465050

Bank overdrafts 6.1 8320 8320 8171

72749 211252 320897 54606 39050 698554 624931

Derivatives

net settlement

Options 518 518 518

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO99
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

tL2009331 iL

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTD
Fair value

34 iE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows

the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

with standard terms and conditions and traded on

active liquid markets are determined with reference

to quoted market bid prices

the fair values of other financial assets and financial

liabilities excluding derivative instruments and financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

are determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis

and

the fair values of derivative instruments and financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

are determined by securities brokers using valuation

models based on inputs such as share price volatility

dividend yield of the underlying equity securities

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded

at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values

LIft

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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For the year ended 37 March 2009

ti2009331 i.fr

35 DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARY

During the year SMC issued an aggregate of 2300556

shares 2008 4297619 shares to certain independent third

parties accordingly the shareholding held by the Group was

diluted and resulted in loss on deemed partial disposal

amounting to HK$150000 2008 gain of HK$279000 net

of attributable goodwill of HK$505000 2008 HK$6000

The loss/gain on deemed partial disposal was calculated

as the difference between the Groups share of net assets

in SMC prior to and after each additional issue of shares

by SMC

36 COMMITMENTS

35

SMCE230055620084297619i
th

j279000 1505000

2008 6000

SMcI
36

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO9f

Capital expenditure in respect of

acquisition of property plant and

equipment contracted for but not

provided in the consolidated

financial statements 3229 4067
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

L2009331 iE

37 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37

As Ie
At the balance sheet date the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of rented premises as follows 3FIT

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within one year Ii 6204 6288

In the second to fifth years inclusive 12038 23414

Over five years
871

18242 30573

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the

Group for its office and factory premises During the year lJ
lease of term of nine years was terminated Leases are fti.E

negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years 2008 one 2008
to nine years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms

As lessor 1sWfflJ

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with

tenants for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within one year 4060 7891

In the second to fifth years inclusive 127 2608

4187 10499

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

tt200933t iL

37 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
CONTD
As lessor CONTD

These properties have committed tenants for terms ranging

from one to two years

38 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date the Group pledged certain assets

with the following carrying values to secure the general credit

facilities granted to the Group and the margin accounts

with securities brokers

37

38

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 20O9

Bills discounted with recourse and

factored debtor balances 38953 97649

Investments held for trading 3204 9726

Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 798 6795

Deposits with securities brokers as

included in debtors

deposits and prepayments 3034 9657
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

t2OO93.31 1E

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme implemented by

the Hong Kong Government for all qualifying employees in

Hong Kong The assets of the scheme are held separately from

those of the Group in funds under the control of trustee

The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs with

cap of monthly contribution HK$1000 to the MPF Scheme

for employees except for executive directors of the Company

which there is no cap on monthly contribution

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members

of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated

by the PRC government The PRC subsidiaries are required

to contribute certain percentage of their payroll to the

retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits The only

obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefits schemes is to make the required contributions

under the schemes

Mr Lau Sak Hong Philip substantial shareholder

of the Company has provided personal guarantee

to indemnify the Group for any impairment of an

unlisted available-for-sale investment to the extent

of HK$15 million 2008 HK$15 million

On 25 September 2008 Starlight Industrial Holdings

Limited wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

effected the acquisition of the remaining 20% equity

interest in Success Base Industries Limited Success

Base non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

from Success Bases other shareholders including

one shareholder being entitled to exercise or control

15% of the voting power of Success Base for

consideration of HK$1600000 Upon completion of

the acquisition Success Base became wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company

39 ljftti

$5% 1000t

IA1i5000000
2008 15000000

2008925

11600000

39 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40 AZ

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

L2009331 it

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS CONTD
The Group maintained current accounts with associates

Their balances as at 31 March 2009 are set out in the

consolidated balance sheet with the terms disclosed

in note 24

During the year the Group paid salaries and other

short term employee benefits including share-based

payments of HK$1778000 2008 HK$1376000 to

certain close family members of Mr Lau Sak Hong

Philip director of the Company as employees of

the Group

iiritiori key rilarieqerTlen personnel

Details of the remuneration of key management

personnel who are the executive directors during

the year were set out in note

41 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 10 June 2009 the Group entered into an agreement

with Economic Development Area Xinhui District Jiangmen

City Guangdong Administrative Committee to dispose of

parcel of land in the Jiangmen City which is shown in the

consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2009 as prepaid

lease payments of HK$61046000 and construction in

progress of HK$41 9000 for consideration of approximately

RMB59388000 equivalent to HK$67702000 The disposal

has not been completed up to date of approval of these

financial statements

40

2009331

177800022008 1376000

XfltA
41

20096Th0

lJ 046000

I4190005tiT
67702000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09fl



141

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

4t2OO9331 iA

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42

Details of the Companys principal subsidiaries are as

follows

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation issued ordinary Attributable

or registration/ share capital/ equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities

ftffI
/th /4

2009 2008

ACME Delight Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding

Cosmo Communications United States US$1571000 93.8% 93.8% Trading in electrical

Corporation of America appliances and

Canada investment holding

1571 000b

Ever Solid Limited Hong Kong HK$10000 100% 100% Investment holding

10000

Hyundai Household Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Trading in electrical

Improvement Limited appliances

2i

Korrigan Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$25000000 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited

25000000ft

Master Light Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding

Merrygain Holding Company Hong Kong HK$5000000 96% 96% Property investment

Limited

5000000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

u-if I-f
J72 IX ii IJ ij_

For the
year

ended 31 March 2009

2009331 it

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES CONTD 42 iI
Place of Nominal value of

incorporation issued ordinary Attributable

or registration/ share capital/ equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities

/tth /1
2009 2008

Newstar.com Limited British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Islands

Nice States Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Property investment

2i

Niceday Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding and

property development

25t

Noble Win Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Property investment

2L

Ram Light Management British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

1t

Sheen United Technology British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

SIH Limited British Virgin HK$10000 100% 100% Investment holding

Islands

100005t

Skylight Technologies British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

1t

Star Fair Electronics Hong Kong HK$15090000 100% 100% Trading in electronic

Company Limited products

15090000

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2OO98
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/--

/J JZ lX

For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009331

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES CO1VTD 42
Place of Nominal value of

incorporation issued ordinary Attributable

or registration share capital equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities

/tth $/
2009 2008

Star Fair Manufacturing Jersey/PRC 12 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of

Company Limited electronic products

12

Star Legend Offshore British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

1t

Star Legend Technologies British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

1ii

Star Light Electronics Hong Kong HK$13000000 100% 100% Trading in electronic

Company Limited products

13000000

Starleaf Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding

Starlight eTech Holdings British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

1t

Starlight Exports Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Trading in electronic

products and property

investment

2fc

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IUçf

/J IJ3 IX IJ

For the
year ended 31 March 2009

2009331

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES CONTD 42

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation issued ordinary Attributable

or registration/ share capital/ equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities

/Lth 2/Ift$
2009 2008

Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73920192 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited

73920192

Starlight Manufacturers Jersey/PRC HK$100000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of

Limited electronic products

100000

Starlight Marketing Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Inactive

Development Limited

Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Securities trading and

trading in electronic

products

2t

Starlight Marketing Macao Macau HK$100000 100% 100% Trading in electronic

Commercial Offshore Limited products

100000t

Starlight RD Limited Hong Kong HK$10000 100% 100% Material sourcing and

trading in electronic

products and

components

10000

Starlight Video Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100% 100% Provision of nominee

services for group

companies and trading

of DVD products

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009fl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.7I

For the year ended 31 March 2009

20093.31 ik

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES CONTD 42

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation issued ordinary Attributable

or registration/ share capital/ equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities

/fth /ffi$
2009 2008

Starlite Consumer Electronics Cayman Islands HK$2 100% 100% Trading in electronic

USA Inc products

2i5

Starlite Consumer Electronics United States US$20 100% 100% Trading in electronic

USA Inc of America products

20i

Starshow Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Provision of nominee

Limited services for group

companies

Success Base Industries Hong Kong HK$4000000 100% 80% Manufacture and sale

Limited of plastic products

4000000

The Singing Machine United States US$272862 52.4% 54.07% Trading in consumer

Company Inc SMC of America karaoke audio

equipment

27286255

Top Spring Technology British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited Islands

Starfair Manufacturing PRC HK$33300000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of

Panyu Company Limited electronic products

33300000t

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2O09
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NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R.f

/J /J -t-IX Ii n_J_

For the year eeded 3t March 2009

fi2OO9331 0i

Place of

incorporation

or registration/

operations

Nominal value of

issued ordinary

share capita 1/

registered capital

42

Attributable

equity interest

to the Group

2009 2008

iT PRC RMB3 1750000

A3 750000

100% 100% Property development

Panyu Starfair Electronics

Manufacturing Company

Limited

lj

PRC HK$21500000

21500000

100% 100% Manufacture and sale of

plastic products

100% 100% Manufacture and sale of

electronic products

The subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned

enterprises

At 31 March 2009 SMC was listed on the NYSE Amex

Equatres formerly known as American Stock Exchange

On 23 June 2009 SMC received written delisting notice

from the NYSE Amex LLC and its common stock are

quoted on the over-the-counter bulletin board with

effective from July 2009

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which

in the opinion of the directors principally affect the results

of the year or constitute substantial portion of the net

assets of the Group To give details of other subsidiaries

would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars

of excessive length

Other than SIH Limited and Star Legend Offshore Limited

which are held directly by the Company all other subsidiaries

are held indirectly by the Company None of the subsidiaries

had any loan capital outstanding at the end of the year or

at any time during the year

20O9331 SMCNYSE
Amex Equatres1f

20096.23
SMCNYSE Amex LLC
ft E20097.7Ht1

SlH LimitedStar Legend Offshore

Limitedft
IJ

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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Name of subsidiary Principal activities

Panyu Success Base Plastic

Company Limited

PRC HK$20000000

200000005
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable

Investment properties Gross floor Nature interest fi$J3

held for rental purposes area sq ft of property to the Group Category of lease

2280 100%

Commercial Long leases

Units and on

13th Floor of

Guangdong Tours Centre

No 18 Pennington Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

5543 100%

26A Commercial Long leases

Unit 26th Floor

United Centre

No 95 Queensway Central

Hong Kong

12079 100%

tikii Industrial Long leases

18th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

232 13974 100%

Industrial Long leases

14th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

13974 96%

I3IkJI1 Industrial Long leases

12th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

W8 63968 100%

221 36it.Q Commercial Long leases

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March

331
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

RESULTS

Turnover 1630741 1782771 2434241 2199033 1281062

Profit loss before taxation 56768 90691 119906 64025 118408

Taxation 5694 11452 9715 18531 1280

Profit loss for the year 51074 79239 10191 45494 119688

Attributable to

Shareholders of the Company 50526 79141 105196 45914 110186

Minority interests 548 98 4995 420 9502

51074 79239 110191 45494 119688

At 31 March

331
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

HK$000 HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets 975841 1219487 1432998 1474310 1197492

Total liabilities 292474 490793 620648 674534 521795

683367 728694 812350 799776 675697

Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company 681814 727177 797117 781739 665100

Share option reserve of listed

subsidiary 66 253 392

Minority interests 1553 1517 15167 17784 10205

683367 728694 812350 799776 675697

Starlight International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009 2009$
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No 82-3594

Annex to Letter to the SEC

dated 23rd August 2009 of

Starlight International Holdings Limited

The documents checked below are being furmshed to the SEC to supplement mformation provided with

respect to the Companys request for exemption under Rule 12g3-2 which exemption i4 44
January 11 1994-

DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

Title Notification of Annual General Meeting

Date 31st July 2009

Entities requiring item Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act disclosure or

distribution to security holders mandated but filing with specific

body or at specific place is not required by the Aàt

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited RKSE
pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement and

the Companys Bye-laws

Title Annual Report Audited Accounts and Auditors Report

Date 2008-2009

Entities requiring item Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act disclosure or

distribution to security holders mandated but filing with specific

body or at specific place is not required by the Act and

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement

Title All circulars sent to shareholders

Date 31St July 2009

Entities requiring item HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement

Title Notification of movement of securities in Hong Kong

Date 31st July 2009

Entities requiring item HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement and



Fm Mdii l3oaid aud FM listed issue

Monthly Return of Equity issuer on Movements in Securities

For the month ended dd/mm/yyyy 31 07 2009

hong Kong Fxchanges and Clearing Limited

Name of Issuer
Starlight International

loldings
imited

Date Submitted 03 08/2009

Movements in Authorised Share Capita

Ordinaiy Shares

Stock code 485 Description Ordinary shaies

Ant horised shai

No of ordinary Par value captal

shares IlK HJv$

Balance at close of preceding month I25000OOO0 $040 $5000O0000

ncrease/decrease Ni Nil Ni

Balance close of the month 1250000000 $040 $500000000

Stock code Description

Par value Authorsed share

No of ordinary Stale capital

shares currency SW/c eurrenc3

Balance at close of preceding month NLA

lncrease/decrease

Balance at close of the month



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

Preference Shares

Stock code Description _________________________________________

Par value Authorised share

No of preference State capital

shares currency State currency

Balance at close of preceding month N/A ________________

Increase/decrease ___________________ ____________________

Balance at close of the month
________________ _________________

Other Classes of Shares

Stock code Description _________________________________________

Par value Authorised share

No of other State capital

classes of shares currency State currency

Balance at close of preceding month N/A
_____________

Increase/decrease
___________________ _______________

Balance at close of the month

Total authorised share capital at the end of the month State HK$500000000

currency



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

II Movements in Issued Share Capital

No of ordinary shares No of preference No of other classes

shares of shares

Balance at close of

preceding month 785088828 N/A N/A N/A

Increase/ decrease

during the month N/A N/A N/A

Balance at close of the

month 785088828 N/A N/A N/A

III Details of Movements in Issued Share Capital

Share Options under Share Option Schemes of the Issuer

Particulars of share No of new shares of No of new shares of

option scheme issuer issued during issuer which may be

including EGM the month pursuant issued pursuant thereto

approval date Movement during the month thereto as at close of the month

ddlmm/yyyy and

class of shares

issuable Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed

Share option

scheme

adopted on

12/09/2002

Ordinary

shares

Exercise price

HK$0.86 Nil Nil Nil 3000000 Nil

HK$0.814 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 500000

HK$0.89 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 12000000

HK$1.45 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 2000000

HK$1.66 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 220000

HK$1.72 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 40000

HK$1.93 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 3000000

Note

Share option

scheme

adopted on

15/01/2008

Ordinary

shares

Exercise price

HK$l.042 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 150000

HK$0.96 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 346000

HK$0.40 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 500000

Note

3000000 shares were lapsed on 10.10.2008



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

shares
___________ ________ ___________

Note

Warrants to Issue Shares of the Issuer which are to be Listed

No of new No of new

shares of shares of

issuer issued issuer which

during the may be issued

month pursuant

pursuant thereto as at

Currency of Nominal value at Exercised Nominal value thereto close of the

Description of warrants nominal close of during the at close of the month

Date of expiry ddlmmlyyyy value preceding month month month

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price

EGM approval date

if applicable

ddlmmlyyyy

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price

EGM approval date

if applicable

ddlmmlyyyy

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price

EGM approval date

if applicable

ddlmrn/yyyy

N/A

Total funds raised during the month from exercise of

options State currency

Total Ordinary shares N/A

Preference shares N/A

Other class N/A



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price ________________________________
EGM approval date

if applicable

ddlmm/yyyy ________________________________

Convertibles i.e Convertible into Shares of the Issuer which are to be Listed

No of new No of new

shares of shares of

issuer issued issuer which

during the may be issued

month pursuant

pursuant thereto as at

Currency of Amount at close Converted Amount at thereto close of the

amount of preceding during the close of the month

Class and description outstanding month month month

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price

EGM approval date

if applicable

ddlmmlyyyy

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price

EGM approval date

if applicable

dd/mmlyyyy

N/A

Total Ordinary shares

Preference shares

Other class

N/A

N/A

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

No of new No of new

shares of shares of

issuer issued issuer which

during the may be issued

month pursuant

pursuant thereto as at

Currency of Amount at close Converted Amount at thereto close of the

amount of preceding during the close of the month

Class and description outstanding month month month

EGM approval date

if applicable

dd/mmlyyyy

N/A

Stock code if listed

Class of shares

issuable Note

Subscription price

EGM approval date

if applicable

ddlmmlyyyy
Total Ordinary shares N/A

Preference shares N/A

Other class N/A

Any other Agreements or Arrangements to Issue Shares of the Issuer which are to be Listed including Options other

than under Share Option Schemes
No of new shares of No of new shares of

issuer issued during issuer which may be

the month pursuant issued pursuant thereto

Full particulars including EGM approval date dd/mmlyyyy
thereto

as at close of the month

if applicable and class of shares issuable

N/A

shares Note

N/A

shares Note

N/A

shares Note

Total Ordinary shares

Preference shares

Other class



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

Other Movements in Issued Share Capital

No of new No of new
shares of shares of

issuer issued issuer which

during the may be

month issued

pursuant pursuant

thereto thereto as at

close of the

Type of Issue
month

Class of shares issuable _________

Note

Rights issue At price
State Issue and allotment

currency date ddlmm/yyyy

EGM approval date

ddlmmlyyyy
N/A _____

Class of shares issuable _________

Note

Open offer At price
State

_______
Issue and allotment

currency date ddlmmlyyyy

EGM approval date

dd/mmiyyyy
N/A _____

Class of shares issuable _________

Note

Placing At price
State

______ Issue and allotment

currency date dd/mm/yyyy

EGM approval date

ddlmmlyyyy
N/A _____

Class of shares issuable _________

Note

Bonus issue
Issue and allotment

date dd/mm/yyyy

EGM approval date

dd/mmlyyyy
N/A _____



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

No of new No of new
shares of shares of

issuer issued issuer which

during the may be

month issued

pursuant pursuant

thereto thereto as at

close of the

Type of Issue
month

Class of shares issuable

Note

Scrip dividend At price
State Issue and allotment

currency date dd/mmlyyyy

EGM approval date

ddlmmlyyyy
N/A

Class of shares

repurchased Note

Repurchase of Cancellation date
shares dd/mmlyyyy

EGM approval date

ddlmmlyyyy
N/A

Class of shares

redeemed Note

Redemption of Redemption date

shares ddlmmlyyyy

EGM approval date

ddlmmlyyyy
N/A

Class of shares issuable

Note

Consideration issue At price
State Issue and allotment

currency date ddlmm/yyyy

EGM approval date

dd/mmlyyyy
N/A



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

No of new No of new
shares of shares of

issuer issued issuer which

during the may be

month issued

pursuant pursuant

thereto thereto as at

close of the

Type of Issue
month

Class of shares issuable

Note

Capital Issue and allotment

reorganisation date ddlmmlyyyy

EGM approval date

dd/mm/yyyy
N/A

Class of shares issuable

Note

10 Other State

Please specif
At price

currency
Issue and allotment

date dd/mm/yyyy

EGM approval date

ddlmmlyyyy N/A

Total Ordinary shares N/A

Preference shares N/A

Other class N/A

Total increase decrease in ordinary shares during the month i.e Total of to NIL

N/A

Total increase decrease in preference shares during the month i.e Total of to
N/A

Total iicrease decrease in other classes of shares during the month i.e Total ofAto N/A

These figures should be the same as the relevant figures under II above Movements in Issued Share Capital



For Main Board and GEM listed issuers

Remarks if any

Submitted by Peter Lee Yip Wah

Title Secretary

Director Secretary or other duly authorised officer

Notes

State the class of shares e.g ordinary preference or other

If there is insufficient space please append the prescribed continuation sheet


